
Board of Directors: 

JARED BOUCHARD, President 
MARCIA MARCUS, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 

PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE & AGENDA 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District will hold a Regular Board Meeting beginning at 5:00 P.M. 
on Tuesday, March 8, 2022. In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-
20 and the Ventura County Stay Well at Home Order resulting from the novel 
Coronavirus the Meeting will be held virtually using the Microsoft Teams platform. 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting  
Or call in (audio only)  
+1 213-282-9788,,18323118#   United States, Los Angeles
Phone Conference ID: 183 231 18#

The agenda is as follows: 

A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
1. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the
purview of the District and which are not on the agenda. (Time limit 3 minutes per
speaker)

C. CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Approve the Agenda Order

2. Financial Reports:
a. Cash Disbursal & Receipt Report – February 2022

1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzA4ODA3OTctMzcwMi00NjU1LTlkN2MtZDgwNmVlYzQzODcw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f7fe391d-f807-4915-a885-600f7b21c060%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1ff9a26-d5c6-43de-8ae2-ea53c9efed90%22%7d
tel:+12132829788,,18323118#%20


 
 
 

3.  Minutes: 
a. February 8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
b. February 28, 2022, Special Board Meeting 

 
 

 
 

D. OPERATIONS REPORT: 
 
 
 

E. ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
 
1. CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 22-05 ENABLING 
CONTINUED USE OF REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 361  
Recommendation: 
1) It is recommended the Board adopt Resolution No. 22-05 authorizing remote 
teleconference meetings of the Legislative Bodies of the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District for the period of March 9, 2022, to April 12, 2022. 
 
 
 
2. SOLICIT BID REQUEST FOR WATER VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT (CI 
105) 
Recommendation: 
1) Authorize the General Manager to proceed with the advertisement of formal bid 
for the Water Valve Replacement Project CI 105. 
 
 
 
3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 
Recommendation: 
1) Board to consider and approve District’s Social Media Policy. 
 
 
 
4. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT UPDATE FROM COUNTY PLANNING 
COMMISSION HEARING 
Recommendation: 
1) Board Discretion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 2





Register: 1002 · Checking Pacific Western

From 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022

Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number Payee Account Memo Payment C Deposit Balance

02/01/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/1 124.00 406,686.30

02/01/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/1 34,810.89 441,497.19

02/01/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei...  CUSI 678.11 442,175.30

02/01/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 228.46 442,403.76

02/02/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Water Cap Fee ... 6,064.00 448,467.76

02/02/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,755.84 450,223.60

02/02/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 1,191.67 451,415.27

02/02/2022 7262 FGL Environmental I... 2000 - Accounts Payable 208.00 451,207.27

02/02/2022 7263 ImageSource 2000 - Accounts Payable 92.88 451,114.39

02/02/2022 7264 Jarrod Lawrence 2000 - Accounts Payable 400.00 450,714.39

02/02/2022 7265 Miguel Zavalza 2000 - Accounts Payable 225.00 450,489.39

02/02/2022 7266 Mission Linen & Uni... 2000 - Accounts Payable 224.60 450,264.79

02/02/2022 7267 Underground Service... 2000 - Accounts Payable 19.90 450,244.89

02/02/2022 7268 Famcon Pipe and Su... 2000 - Accounts Payable 17,452.69 432,792.20

02/02/2022 7270 Badger Meter 2000 - Accounts Payable 8,412.48 424,379.72

02/02/2022 7271 Amazon Capital Serv... 2000 - Accounts Payable 635.15 423,744.57

02/02/2022 7272 Badger Meter 2000 - Accounts Payable 1,682.99 422,061.58

02/03/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 1,519.30 423,580.88

02/03/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 873.63 424,454.51

02/04/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 3,209.81 427,664.32

02/04/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,509.13 429,173.45

02/04/2022 ACH So. California Edison... 2 - Sewer System Expe... 1-19-22     7567 3.84 429,169.61

02/04/2022 ACH Arco 4 - Maintenance Expen... 2-3-22 841.12 428,328.49

02/04/2022 ACH Aflac *2020 - Payroll Liabilit... 946957 235.70 428,092.79

02/04/2022 ACH Cardmember Service 8000 - Suspense Jan. 22 4,025.33 424,067.46

02/04/2022 ACH So. California Edison... 2 - Sewer System Expe... 1-19-22   1451 2.29 424,065.17

02/04/2022 ACH CalPers -split- pr pd 1-8-22 to... 3,887.63 420,177.54

02/04/2022 ACH CalPers 5 - Salaries & Benefits:... Unfunded Accr... 28.50 420,149.04

02/04/2022 ACH CalPers -split- Feb. 2022 11,745.36 408,403.68

02/04/2022 ACH ACWA/JPIA Health ... 5 - Salaries & Benefits:... 0681462 1,113.62 407,290.06

02/04/2022 ACH Tampa Hardware 2 4 - Maintenance Expen... 01-31-22 295.16 406,994.90

02/04/2022 7273 Famcon Pipe and Su... 2000 - Accounts Payable 160.88 406,834.02

02/04/2022 7274 FGL Environmental I... 2000 - Accounts Payable 329.00 406,505.02

02/04/2022 7275 ImageSource 2000 - Accounts Payable 72.03 406,432.99

02/04/2022 7276 IVR Technology Gro... 2000 - Accounts Payable 101.05 406,331.94

02/04/2022 7277 Pacific Couriers 2000 - Accounts Payable 267.31 406,064.63

02/04/2022 7278 Michael K. Nunley ... 2000 - Accounts Payable 6,622.65 399,441.98

02/07/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 2,768.33 402,210.31

02/07/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,403.25 403,613.56

02/08/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 6,659.80 410,273.36

Channel Islands Beach 2013 3/2/2022 5:08 PM

Page 1
4



Register: 1002 · Checking Pacific Western

From 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022

Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number Payee Account Memo Payment C Deposit Balance

02/08/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,050.12 411,323.48

02/09/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/8 14,304.69 425,628.17

02/09/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 8,414.20 434,042.37

02/09/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,003.56 435,045.93

02/09/2022 ACH SoCalGas 6 - Administrative Exp... 2-4-22 44.63 435,001.30

02/09/2022 ACH Frontier-Office 6 - Administrative Exp... 02-01-22 160.18 434,841.12

02/09/2022 7279 Famcon Pipe and Su... 2000 - Accounts Payable 1,990.56 432,850.56

02/09/2022 7280 FGL Environmental I... 2000 - Accounts Payable 208.00 432,642.56

02/09/2022 7281 ImageSource 2000 - Accounts Payable 399.00 432,243.56

02/09/2022 7282 Xpress Lube 2000 - Accounts Payable Colorado Oil C... 53.28 432,190.28

02/09/2022 QuickBooks Payroll ... -split- Created by Pay... 23,704.91 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Carol J Dillon -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Casey D Johnson -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print E.D. Brock -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Erika F Davis -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Keila E Wilson -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Mark A Espinosa -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Peter A. Martinez -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/09/2022 To Print Jesus Navarro -split- Direct Deposit 408,485.37

02/10/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 5,205.59 413,690.96

02/10/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 436.83 414,127.79

02/10/2022 ACH CalPers -split- 01/22/22-2/04/... 3,903.58 410,224.21

02/10/2022 ACH CalPers -split- P Martinez incr... 207.99 410,016.22

02/10/2022 7283 Pollardwater 2000 - Accounts Payable 3,652.49 406,363.73

02/10/2022 7285 Nationwide Retirement 2000 - Accounts Payable Prpd 1/8/22 to ... 2,587.11 403,776.62

02/10/2022 7286 Nationwide Retirement 2000 - Accounts Payable Prpyd 1/22/22 t... 2,530.89 401,245.73

02/11/2022 2015 · Covid 19 Relief... Deposit 42,487.00 443,732.73

02/11/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... 2/11 15,500.29 459,233.02

02/11/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/11 8,174.36 467,407.38

02/11/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/11 1,077.00 468,484.38

02/11/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 1,667.32 470,151.70

02/11/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 605.66 470,757.36

02/11/2022 7287 ACWA/Joint Powers ... 2000 - Accounts Payable Period 10/01/2... 3,465.84 467,291.52

02/11/2022 7288 CUSI 2000 - Accounts Payable Inv.  from 8/31... 101.14 467,190.38

02/14/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 4,283.87 471,474.25

02/15/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 3,274.84 474,749.09

02/15/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 814.92 475,564.01

02/15/2022 RETCK QB:Returned Item 1200 - Accounts Recei... Mace 122.28 475,441.73

02/16/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 3120 Sewer Revenues:... 10-01-22-12-3... 248,759.84 724,201.57

02/16/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/16 17,713.72 741,915.29

Channel Islands Beach 2013 3/2/2022 5:08 PM

Page 2
5



Register: 1002 · Checking Pacific Western

From 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022

Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number Payee Account Memo Payment C Deposit Balance

02/16/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/16 10,612.33 752,527.62

02/16/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 2,890.05 755,417.67

02/16/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 453.44 755,871.11

02/17/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 2,644.89 758,516.00

02/17/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,669.23 760,185.23

02/18/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/18 22,364.38 782,549.61

02/18/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 1,924.56 784,474.17

02/18/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 633.41 785,107.58

02/18/2022 ACH Exxon-Mobil 4 - Maintenance Expen... 2-7-22 193.63 784,913.95

02/18/2022 ACH So. California Edison... 2 - Sewer System Expe... 2-14-22 873.01 784,040.94

02/18/2022 ACH So. California Edison... 2 - Sewer System Expe... 2-14-22 627.61 783,413.33

02/18/2022 ACH Wex Bank 4 - Maintenance Expen... 2-7-22 193.63 783,219.70

02/18/2022 ACH So. California Edison... 2 - Sewer System Expe... 2-14-22 627.61 782,592.09

02/18/2022 ACH So. California Edison... 2 - Sewer System Expe... 2-14-22 873.01 781,719.08

02/18/2022 ACH AT & T 6 - Administrative Exp... 2-1-22 809.85 780,909.23

02/18/2022 7289 Famcon Pipe and Su... 2000 - Accounts Payable 3,032.23 777,877.00

02/18/2022 7290 A to Z Law, LLP 2000 - Accounts Payable 924.00 776,953.00

02/18/2022 7291 net2phone 2000 - Accounts Payable 662.01 776,290.99

02/18/2022 7292 PHWA 2000 - Accounts Payable January 2022 60,590.34 715,700.65

02/18/2022 7293 XIO, Inc. 2000 - Accounts Payable 1,095.00 714,605.65

02/18/2022 7294 Base Auto Parts and ... 2000 - Accounts Payable Backhoe 432.28 714,173.37

02/18/2022 7295 Ferguson Waterworks 2000 - Accounts Payable 304.00 713,869.37

02/18/2022 7296 FGL Environmental I... 2000 - Accounts Payable 450.00 713,419.37

02/22/2022 ACH QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Pac West Bank... 89,804.73 803,224.10

02/22/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 2,671.81 805,895.91

02/22/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 347.17 806,243.08

02/22/2022 ACH CalPers -split- 11,745.36 794,497.72

02/22/2022 ACH CalPers -split- 3,903.58 790,594.14

02/22/2022 RETCK QB:Returned Item 1200 - Accounts Recei... Shahin 223.62 790,370.52

02/23/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 3,228.04 793,598.56

02/23/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 1,990.79 795,589.35

02/23/2022 7297 Nationwide Retirement 2000 - Accounts Payable Pr pd 02/05/22 ... 3,056.56 792,532.79

02/23/2022 QuickBooks Payroll ... -split- Created by Pay... 24,296.68 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print Carol J Dillon -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print Casey D Johnson -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print E.D. Brock -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print Erika F Davis -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print Keila E Wilson -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print Mark A Espinosa -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/23/2022 To Print Peter A. Martinez -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

Channel Islands Beach 2013 3/2/2022 5:08 PM

Page 3
6



Register: 1002 · Checking Pacific Western

From 02/01/2022 through 02/28/2022

Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number Payee Account Memo Payment C Deposit Balance

02/23/2022 To Print Jesus Navarro -split- Direct Deposit X 768,236.11

02/24/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 20,717.16 788,953.27

02/24/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 3,199.64 792,152.91

02/24/2022 7298 County of Ventura - ... 2000 - Accounts Payable Cross Connecti... 499.99 791,652.92

02/24/2022 7299 FGL Environmental I... 2000 - Accounts Payable 266.00 791,386.92

02/24/2022 7300 JEM TECH PROS 2000 - Accounts Payable 190.00 791,196.92

02/24/2022 7301 Quinn Company 2000 - Accounts Payable Generator 50,696.02 740,500.90

02/24/2022 7302 Sam Hill & Sons, Inc. 2000 - Accounts Payable 3850 Harbor/ra... 7,082.77 733,418.13

02/24/2022 7303 SHARON LANDAU 2000 - Accounts Payable Refund Overpa... 3,000.00 730,418.13

02/25/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/25 14,392.95 744,811.08

02/25/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/25 11,949.34 756,760.42

02/25/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2-25 6,683.24 763,443.66

02/25/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2/25 1,736.42 765,180.08

02/25/2022 DEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Dep 2-25 477.31 765,657.39

02/25/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 3,744.52 769,401.91

02/25/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 132.74 769,534.65

02/25/2022 7304 Famcon Pipe and Su... 2000 - Accounts Payable 278.85 769,255.80

02/25/2022 7305 EJ Harrison & Sons, ... 2000 - Accounts Payable 1/1/22 - 01/31/22 48,588.93 720,666.87

02/28/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... Vanco 2,364.28 723,031.15

02/28/2022 EDEP QB:DEPOSIT 1200 - Accounts Recei... CUSI 1,808.27 724,839.42

Channel Islands Beach 2013 3/2/2022 5:08 PM

Page 4
7



MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING, February 8, 2022 
 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

President Bouchard called the virtual meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. In attendance, Vice 
President Marcus, Director Brewer, Director Debley, Director Nast, General Manager 
Peter Martinez, Clerk of the Board, Erika Davis, General Counsel, John Mathews, Office 
Manager, CJ Dillon, and Operations Manager Jesus (Chuy) Navarro. 

 

B.      PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None. 

 

C.      CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Vice President Marcus made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar. Director 
Debley seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

Debley, Bouchard, Brewer, Marcus, Nast  5- Yes   0 -No 

 

D. SPECIAL PRESENTATION: 
 
Don Villafana, Public Works Director City of Port Hueneme, Heather O’Connell, Water 
Resources Engineering Associates (WREA), and Erika Wilson, (WREA) presented the 
proposed extension of the cross base pipeline project. See attached presentation. 
 
 

E. ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
1. CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 22-02 ENABLING 
CONTINUED USE OF REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 361: 

 
President Bouchard stated that this was a resolution required to continue 
teleconference meetings. There was no public comment. Vice President Marcus made 
the motion to adopt Resolution No 22-02 Enabling continued use of remote 

8



teleconference meetings in accordance with assembly bill 361. Director Brewer 
seconded the motion. The motion passed.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Marcus: YES, Brewer: YES, Debley: YES, Nast: YES  5 - Yes 0 -No 
 
2. COVID-19 CSDA RELIEF FINDING 

General Manager Martinez stated that the District received $42,487.00 in COVID relief 
funding. General Manager Martinez recommended the distribution option #1- applying 
funding to cover bad debt during the time period of March 2020 through June 2021. 
Board asked questions. There was no public comment. President Bouchard made the 
motion to support General Manager’s recommendation to proceed with option #1 adding 
a provision that the money be applied after customers meet their signed payment 
agreement. However, the second portion of the motion is subject to General Counsel 
approval. Director Brewer seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Marcus: YES, Brewer: YES, Debley: NO, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 1 -No 
 

3. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 22-03 ELECTING TO BE SUBJECT 
TO THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT AT AN 
EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS 
 
Office Manager Dillon discussed the responses received from CalPers Agency 
regarding questions the Board had previously asked. There was no public comment. 
Director Debley moved to approve Resolution 22-03 Electing to be subject to the public 
employee’s medical and hospital care act at an equal amount for employees and 
annuitants. Vice President Marcus seconded the motion. The motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Marcus: YES, Brewer: YES, Debley: YES, Nast: YES  5 - Yes 0 -No 
 
 
4. APPOINTMENT OF REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR GENERAL MANAGER 
MARTINEZ FOR CROSS BASE PIPELINE – PARTY TO BE NEGOTIATED WITH 
CITY OF PORT HUENEME 
 
Vice President Marcus moved to follow staff’s recommendation to appoint General 
Manager Martinez as the Real Property Negotiator for the cross base pipeline -party to 
be negotiated with City of Port Hueneme. Director Brewer seconded the motion. The 
motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Marcus: YES, Brewer: YES, Debley: YES, Nast: YES  5 - Yes 0 -No 
 

9



GENERAL COUNSEL RECOMMENDED THAT THE CLOSED SESSION ITEM F BE 
MOVED TO THE END OF THE MEETING AFTER ITEM I: GENERAL COUNSEL & 
GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS. BOARD AGREED. ITEM F: CLOSED SESSION 
WAS MOVED TO THE END OF THE AGENDA ORDER AFTER ITEM I: GENERAL 
COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS.  
 
 
G. INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 

1. Verbal update on water conservation messaging 
 
General Manager Martinez reported on the District’s water conservation messaging 
efforts that included the message board on Victoria by the Coast Guard station, 
postcards with conservation tips, Bewaterwise banners, barricades with signage, and a 
draft social media policy that will be brought back to the Board in March.  
 
2. Report from Board Members for any meeting or conference where compensation for 
attendance was received. 

None. 

 
H.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
Director Nast thanked General Manager Martinez for making the effort and receiving the 
COVID relief funding. 
 
Vice President Marcus stated the need for more rain. 
 
 
 
I.  GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 
General Counsel said three groundwater sustainability plans in Ventura County were 
approved. The State had a certain amount of grants. President Bouchard secured 5.8 
million in Grant Funding for Pleasant Valley District. 
  
General Manager Martinez said they are preparing a new proposal for the building 
project. 
 
General Manager Martinez said the PHWA will be meeting in closed session this month 
regarding an item with City of Oxnard. The meeting will be February 22nd. 
 
General Manager Martinez said the presentation regarding the assets and benefits to 
the District will be presented at the April meeting. 

10



 
 
F. CLOSED SESSION: 
 
General Counsel announced the Board went into closed session at 6:25 p.m. in 
accordance with Government Code section 54956.8- Conference with Real 
Property Negotiator General Manager Martinez regarding cross base pipeline- 
party to be negotiated with City of Port Hueneme. 
 
 
Board went back into open session at 6:54 p.m. General Counsel announced the 
Board met in closed session with the real property negotiator General Manager 
Martinez. General discussion followed. No reportable action was taken. 
 
 
The Board Meeting adjourned at 6:56 P.M. 
_______________________________________________                                    

Jared Bouchard, President                                                                                                  

11



12



Existing Facilities & Aging Infrastructure

Transmission and Distribution System

• The potable water system includes 249,489 feet (47.3 miles) of transmission and distribution system pipes 
ranging in size from 2-inches to 14-inches in diameter. 

• Approximately 26 percent of the system was installed before 1960, 30 percent during the 1960’s, and 22 
percent in the 1970’s.

• AKM Consultants Prepared our Water Master Plan and we have $30 Million Plus in recommended capital 
improvement projects to address aging infrastructure over the next 12 years.

• The main water transmission line in Ventura Road is over 70 years old and replacing it would be very 
disruptive.  The Cross-base Pipeline Extension project will be much less disruptive than replacing the line in 
Ventura road. The new main will provide redundancy to the north portion of the City and create a loop 
system.

13



City of Port 
Hueneme 
Cross-Base 
Pipeline Extension
Preliminary Design Overview and 
Alignment Alternatives

14



Proposed 
Alignment 
Overview

15



Existing Cross Base Pipeline
• 24” Port Hueneme Water Agency (PHWA) pipeline extending from the treatment 

plant to just east of the Navy Base.

• In ‘96-97, the line was further extended across the Base by PHWA with an 18” 
pipeline (red line), paid for by the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
(CIBCSD).

• Ties into 12” CIBCSD Connection, ultimately connecting to the CIBCSD 8” line in 
Panama Dr. 

Figure 1: Existing 18” Cross Base Pipeline (in Red) 
Conceptual Exhibit 

Figure 2: Cross Base Pipeline Plan, ’96 (Kennedy/Jenks Consultants) 16



Existing Cross Base Pipeline (Alternative Slide)
• 24” Port Hueneme Water Agency (PHWA) pipeline extending from the treatment plant to just east of the Navy Base.

• In ‘96-97, the line was further extended across the Base by PHWA with an 18” pipeline (red line), paid for by the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (CIBCSD).

• Ties into 12” CIBCSD Connection, ultimately connecting to the CIBCSD 8” line in Panama Dr. 

Figure 1: Existing 18” Cross Base Pipeline (in Red) Conceptual Exhibit 
17



Proposed Cross Base 
Pipeline Extension

• At Existing Cross Base Connection with CIBCSD, proposal to 
extend the line to Channel Islands Blvd. 

• Proposed 18” line to extend approx. 7,100 linear feet up Victoria 
Rd. (red line, Figure 4)

• Provide redundancy for City of Port Hueneme – existing line in 
Ventura Rd. is old (dashed line, Figure 4)

• Better, more reliable water pressure and supply for CIBCSD and 
Navy Base

Figure 3 (left): Proposed start of alignment/connection to existing cross base pipeline at Panama Drive. 
Figure 4 (right): Overall Water System Exhibit with proposed and existing lines shown. 

Proposed Point 
of Connection to 
CIBCSD

Existing County 
of Ventura Right 
of Way

Navy Base 
Property

Proposed 
Alignment

18



Proposed Alignment

Figure 5: Preliminary Alignment Sheets Layout, Pipeline 
in Blue, Navy fence line in Yellow. (WREA)

Figure 6: Proposed end of alignment, tie into existing line on Channel Islands Blvd. by crossing over 
by VC  Flood Control District Channel and avoiding roadway interruptions as much as possible. 

Proposed 
Alignment

19



Alignment Alternatives
Ventura Road vs. Victoria Ave

Figure 7: E Pleasant Valley Rd. and Ventura Rd. intersection 
where an alignment along Ventura Rd. would begin. 

Figure 8: Victoria Ave. and Lakeshore Dr., where proposed 18” pipeline extension 
would connect to CIBCSD connection along Panama Dr.

Existing 14” DIP line in 
Ventura Rd. (1940’s) per 

the City of Port 
Hueneme Water 

Distribution System 
Master Plan (2011)

Existing 24” 
PHWA 

Water Line 

Existing 
24” UWCD 
Water Line

Proposed 18” Pipeline 
Extension in Victoria 

Ave. with point of 
connection to existing 

cross-base pipeline 
along Panama Drive.

20



Alignment Alternatives
Ventura Road vs. Victoria Ave

Figure 9: Ventura Rd. and Channel Islands Blvd Intersection Figure 10: Victoria Ave and Channel Islands Blvd Intersection

Existing 14” DIP line in 
Ventura Rd. (1940’s) per 

the City of Port 
Hueneme Water 

Distribution System 
Master Plan (2011)

Proposed 18” 
Pipeline Extension in 

Victoria Ave., 
terminating after 

crossing the Oxnard 
Drain in CI Blvd.

21



Dirt Shoulder Along Victoria

Figure 11: Dirt shoulder along Victoria Ave. where proposed pipeline alignment is. Approximately 
2,950 linear feet of the pipeline would fall within this area.

Proposed 18” 
Pipeline Extension in 
Victoria Ave., utilizing 

the dirt shoulder 
area for optimal 
constructability. 

22



Ventura Road vs. Victoria Ave Intersections

Figure 13: Victoria Ave road length highlighting the intersections, including the Victoria gate 
entrance to the Naval Base. 

Figure 12: Ventura Road length, highlighting the many intersections along the way. 

23



PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE
FOR CITY OF PORT HUENEME

CROSSBASE PIPELINE EXTENSION

24



MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING February 28, 2022 

A. APPROVE THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA:

President Bouchard called the virtual meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. In attendance, Vice 
President Marcus, Director Brewer, General Manager Peter Martinez, Clerk of the 
Board, Erika Davis, General Counsel, John Mathews, Office Manager, CJ Dillon, and 
Operations Manager Jesus (Chuy) Navarro. 

Director Debley and Director Nast were absent. 

Vice President Marcus made the motion to approve the Special Board Meeting 
Agenda. Director Brewer seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Bouchard: YES, Marcus: YES, Brewer: YES 3-Yes 0-No

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

None.

C. ACTION CALENDAR:

1. Adoption of Resolution 22-04 a SB619 Notice of Intent to Comply Application 
and Direction for the General Manager to Submit the Application to the 
Department of Resources, Recycling and Recovery

General Manager Martinez explained that this was required by CalRecycle although 
other attempts were made to get the exemption. There was no public comment. 
Director Brewer moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 
22-04 authorizing the General Manager to submit the Notice of Intent to Comply 
Application pursuant to SB619 to the Department of Resources, Recycling and 
Recovery. Vice President Marcus seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Bouchard: YES, Marcus: YES, Brewer: YES 3-Yes 0-No

25



 

D.  INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 
1. Public Hearing with the County of Ventura Planning Commission for the Application 
of Conditional Use Permit (Case No. PL20-0050) & Conditional Voluntary Merger (Case 
No. PL20-0051) – scheduled for March 3, 2022, at 8:30 a.m. 

Board received report. 

  

  
The Board Meeting adjourned at 2:15 P.M. 

_______________________________________________                                    

Jared Bouchard, President                                                                                                  

26



 

Board of Directors: 
 
JARED BOUCHARD, President 
MARCIA MARCUS, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

  
Regular Board Meeting, March 8, 2022  
  
To:    Board of Directors  
  
From:  

    
Peter Martinez, General Manager  

  
Subject:  

    
CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 22-05 
ENABLING CONTINUED USE OF REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
MEETINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 361  
  
  

Item No.    E-1  
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended the Board adopt Resolution No. 22-05 authorizing remote teleconference 
meetings of the Legislative Bodies of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District for 
the period of March 9, 2022, to April 12, 2022.  

  
       

  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
  
In March 2020, amid concern surrounding the spread of the COVID-19 virus throughout 
communities in the state, California Governor Gavin Newsom issued a series of Executive Orders 
aimed at containing the novel coronavirus. These Orders modified or waived meeting 
requirements in the Brown Act Open Meetings Law for local agency public meetings so that the 
public health and safety of all attendees would be protected through teleconferenced or remote 
meetings.  

  
On September 16, 2021, the Governor signed Assembly Bill 361 requiring an approved 
Resolution justifying the need to continue virtual meetings due to imminent risks to the health and 
safety of attendees. If approved, the attached Resolution 22-05 would become effective March 9, 
2022, through April 12, 2022.  
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  

1. Resolution No. 22-05   
  

  
 

27



Board of Directors: 

JARED BOUCHARD, President 
MARCIA MARCUS, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 

PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, RE-
RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY GOVERNER’S 
EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 ON MARCH 17, 2020, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF CHANNEL ISLANDS 
BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FOR 30 ADDITIONAL DAYS UNTIL APRIL 12, 
2022, PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS.  

WHEREAS, the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District is committed to preserving and 
nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of Channel Islands Beach Community Services District’s legislative bodies are 
open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any 
member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct their 
business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor pursuant to 
Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to 
the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as described in Government Code 
section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health and safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the Board of 
Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that exists in the District, and the 
Board of Directors has done so; and  

28



WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the District, specifically, ON MARCH 4, 2020 THE 
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE ISSUED A STATE OF EMERGENCY ORDER RELATED TO THE COVID-
19 PANDEMIC AND THAT ORDER REMAINS EFFECTIVE AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION OF 
THIS RESOLUTION; and 

WHEREAS, ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2021, ORDER OF THE VENTURA COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER 
EXTENDING THE AUGUST 20, 2021 ORDER REQUIRING ALL INDIVIDUALS IN THE COUNTY 
TO WEAR FACE COVERINGS IN ALL INDOOR PUBLIC SETTINGS AND BUSINESSES TO 
MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19; and   

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the continued risk of COVID-19 infection 
remains significantly higher than stated public health goals, and the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District Board Room is not sufficient in size to allow for appropriate social distancing has 
caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the District that are 
likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires 
to affirm a local emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor 
of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors does hereby find 
that the legislative bodies of Channel Islands Beach Community Services District shall continue to 
conduct their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code 
section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall 
continue to comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed 
in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

WHEREAS, all meetings will be conducted to ensure the ability for the public to continue to participate 
through publication of meeting agendas containing the meeting ID link and call in phone number of all 
remote meetings, which allow the public to listen and provide comment on any and all business being 
conducted before the legislative body.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors hereby considers the 
conditions of the state of emergency in the District and proclaims that a local emergency persists 
throughout the District, and  

Section 3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board hereby ratifies 
the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance 
date of March 4, 2020. 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and legislative bodies of Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions 
necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and 

29



public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions 
of the Brown Act. 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 
upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of April 12, 2022, or such time the Board of 
Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to 
extend the time during which the legislative bodies of Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 
section 54953. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District this 8th day of March 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

_____________________________________
JARED BOUCHARD, BOARD PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
_____________________________________
PETER MARTINEZ
GENERAL MANAGER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________________
JOHN MATHEWS
GENERAL COUNSEL

30



 

Board of Directors: 
 
JARED BOUCHARD, President 
MARCIA MARCUS, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting, March 8, 2022   
  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    Peter Martinez, General Manager  
Subject:    Solicit Bid Request for Water Valve Replacement Project (CI 105)  
Item No.    E-2  
  
  
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Authorize the General Manager to proceed with the advertisement of formal bid for the Water 
Valve Replacement Project CI 105.  
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
  
 
As part of the District’s water system maintenance program, we must replace defective gate and 
butterfly valves to ensure proper operation of the distribution system. Replacing inoperable and 
broken valves enhances our ability to respond to emergency shutdowns in a timely manner and 
minimizes the inconvenience to District customers during that time.  
 
Staff is proposing a formal request for bid (Attachment #1) for the Valve Replacement Project in 
the Silverstrand and Hollywood by the Sea neighborhoods. Based on the staff findings during the 
valve exercising maintenance program, the District is proposing to replace 18 valves in the 
defined project area. There are approximately 535 valves in the District’s water distribution 
system. The goal is to replace all inoperable valves across the District’s water distribution system 
over the next two years.   
 
If approved, bids would be advertised March 11, 2022, respondents would have 4 weeks to submit 
a bid, and the District would propose awarding the project in April.   
  
NEXT STEPS: 
 
If approved, staff would immediately advertise the bid document for the Valve Replacement 
Project. The table below details a basic list of events towards project completion. 
  
Event  Date  
Advertise bid   March 11  
Questions due  March 25  
Submittals Due  April 11  
Project award  April 26  
Project commencement  May 1  
Project completion  June 30  
  

31



  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact to the District for advertising the Valve Replacement Project. 
 
 
Attachments:  

1. Valve Replacement Project Bid Document  
 

32



 

Version 2/18/2020 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

FOR 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

Contract No. CI 105 

 

March 2022 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
353 Santa Monica Drive 

Channel Islands Beach, CA  93035 
(805) 985-6021

33



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 1 Table of Contents 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PART 1 – BIDDING 

NOTICE OF MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING AND SITE VISIT 

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

PART 2 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

BID FORM 

CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE DECLARATION 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

BID BOND 

PROPOSER’S BUSINESS INFORMATION 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 

PAYMENT BOND (LABOR & MATERIAL) 

INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS (CHECK LIST and SAMPLES) 

PART 3 – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS 

PART 4 – PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

DISTRICT’S STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD PLANS FOR WATER, 
SEWER, AND RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES 

PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

34



 

 

PART 1 

BIDDING 

35



 

Valve replacement Project 1 of 1 Pre-Bid Meeting Notice 

NOTICE OF MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING AND SITE VISIT 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
Contract No. CI 105 

FOR THE 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Ventura County, California 

Attendance at the pre-bid conference/site visit is mandatory.  No other site visit will be 
provided.  Bidders are responsible to understand the Project (Refer to Section 4 of the 
Instructions to Bidders). 

Bidders must complete and upload to Public Purchase Bidding System all Bid Submittal Forms 
and Business Information Forms provided in this IFB.  Bidders currently on the District’s Pre-
qualified Contractors List do not need to complete the Business Information Forms. 

The pre-bid conference will be held at the time and place stated below: 

Date & Time: 

X:X a.m. on Tuesday, March XX, 2022 

Location: 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands, CA  93035 

Tentative Itinerary: 

Preliminary question and answer session will begin at 9:00 a.m. with site visits to follow. 

Questions and requests for substitution pertaining to this project must be submitted to the 
District electronically via the Public Purchase Bidding System on or before 5:00 p.m. on 
Thursday, March XX, 2022. 

36



 

Valve replacement Project 1 of 2 Notice Inviting Bids 

NOTICE INVITING ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS (BIDS) 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
Contract No. CI 105 

FOR THE 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Ventura County, California 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of said District invites and will receive 
sealed proposals (Bids) via its electronic bidding system up to the hour of 5:00 p.m. on the 
April XX, 2022, for the furnishing to said District of all transportation, labor, materials, tools, 
equipment, services, permits, utilities, and other items necessary to construct said work.  At 
said time, it will be the responsibility of the prospective bidder to log into the Public Purchase 
Bidding System for the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District to view the 
apparent lowest bidder for the project in question. 

Contract Documents for the Project may be obtained through the District’s Public Purchase 
Bidding System.  Upon award of a Contract, Contractor will be furnished one (1) sets of plans 
and specifications. 

Bids shall conform to and be responsive to the Contract Documents for the work. 

Bidders must complete, and submit with bid, all information requested on the Bid Forms.  
District shall evaluate the apparent low bid to determine responsiveness and responsibility of 
bidder and determine if Bidder is qualified for successful performance of District construction 
projects in a timely manner and does not guarantee work with the District. 

A contract may be awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid for 
a specific project. 

Each Bid shall be submitted through the Public Purchase Bidding System for the Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District as part of the Contract Documents and must be 
accompanied by a scanned copy of the cashier's check, a certified check, or a Bidder's bond 
in an amount not less than ten percent (10%) of the amount of the Bid, made payable to the 
order of or for the benefit of the District.  Each Bid shall be submitted electronically at or before 
the time in this notice provided.  The check or bond shall be given as guarantee that the Bidder 
will enter into a contract with the District and furnish the required payment and performance 
bonds and certificates of insurance and endorsements if awarded the work, and will be 
declared forfeited if the Bidder refuses to timely enter into said contract or furnish the required 
bonds or certificates of insurance and endorsements if his Bid is accepted.  A hardcopy of the 
Bidder’s bond, cashier’s check or certified check must be received at the District offices within 
two days of closing bid date. 

The Board of Directors has obtained from the Director of the California Department of 
Industrial Relations a determination of the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the 

37



 

Valve replacement Project 2 of 2 Notice Inviting Bids 

general prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work in the locality in which said work is 
to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed.  Not less than the 
determined rates shall be paid to all workers employed in the performance of the contract.  
Such rates of wages are on file with Department of Industrial Relations and in the Contracts 
office of the District and are available to any interested party upon request. 

Pursuant to California Public Contracts Code Section 22300, the Contractor will be entitled to 
post approved securities with the District or an approved financial institution in order to have 
the District release funds retained by the District to insure performance of the Contract. 

The District has endeavored to develop particularly fair and equitable provisions relating to 
indemnification, liability and related insurance for both the District and the Contractor.  It is 
imperative that the Bidders carefully review this notice, and the accompanying forms, relating 
to the District's insurance requirements. 

The successful Bidder will be held to comply with the insurance requirements as specified by 
the District herein, and in the event of Bidder’s failure or inability to meet the insurance 
requirements after the award of Bid, the District shall have the right to consider such failure to 
be a material noncompliance by the successful Bidder and will look to exercise its right by (a) 
rejecting the Bid(s); or (b) declaring a forfeiture of the Bid bond. 

It is recommended that Bidder carefully review District insurance requirements with its 
insurance agent/representative to determine Bidder’s ability to comply with the insurance 
requirements, as specified. 

Bidders are required to execute a certificate, which must be submitted with Bid indicating that 
Bidder has reviewed and understands the insurance requirements and that Bidder has the 
ability to provide insurance in accordance with Section 11 of the Construction Agreement. 

This Project must be constructed and completed between specific calendar or working dates 
as specified in the contract.  Liquidated Damages as specified in Section 6 of the Construction 
Agreement will be imposed if the Contractor fails to comply with the completion time specified 
in Section 4 of the Construction Agreement.  Contractor is expected to begin work immediately 
upon receipt of District’s Notice to Proceed.  

The Board of Directors of the District reserves the right to select the schedule(s) under which 
the Bids are to be compared and contract(s) awarded, to reject any and all Bids, and to waive 
any and all irregularity in any Bid. 

By the order of the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District. 

    
 Pete Martinez – General Manager Date 

38



PART 1 – BIDDING 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

Valve replacement Project 1 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

1. GENERAL 

1.1 Definitions for capitalized terms used in this Invitation for Bids (IFB) are located on 
Page 3 of the General Conditions. 

1.2 No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public 
works project (submitted on or after March 1, 2015) unless registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 [with limited 
exceptions from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code Section 
1771.1(a)]. 

No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public 
works project (awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department 
of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. 

This Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department 
of Industrial Relations. 

1.4 The Bid shall be for all the Work to be performed as shown and specified in the 
Contract Documents included hereto and generally described as supplying all labor, 
equipment, materials, and forces necessary to complete the Work. 

1.5 Bids shall be submitted on the Bid Forms provided by District, and in the manner 
described in this IFB (via Public Purchase Bidding System). 

1.6 A Bidder may withdraw its Bid by a signed written request any time prior to the date 
and time for receiving Bids designated in this IFB.  The withdrawal of a Bid does not prejudice 
the right of a Bidder to file a new Bid so long as the new Bid is delivered prior to the closing 
time specified for all Bids. 

1.7 A mandatory pre-bid conference, which includes a site visit/ job walk, will be held as 
noted in this IFB. 

1.8 A Bid delivered to District at the time set for opening shall be deemed irrevocable, and 
Bidder may not withdraw this Bid for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after the date set 
for opening.  Extensions to this 90-day period may be requested in writing by District prior to 
the expiration date and may be extended pursuant to agreement by Bidder. 

1.9 The Contract Documents provided to Bidder shall be provided by District at its election 
and may consist of the Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid forms, the Construction 
Agreement, any addenda, General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions, District Standard 
Specifications and Standard Plans (for Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Facilities), Project 
Plans and Specifications, and/or Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction. 

1.10 The Contract Documents are divided into parts, divisions, sections, articles, 
paragraphs and drawings in keeping with accepted industry practice in order to separate 
categories of subject matter for convenient reference thereto.  There has been no attempt to 
divide the Specifications, the Specification sections or the Plans/Drawings into work 
performed by the various building trades, work by separate Contractors, or work required for 

39



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

separate facilities in the project.  The Contract Documents are complementary and what is 
called for by one shall be as binding as if called for by all. 

1.11 Specifications are bound into these documents in the same order as they appear in 
the Table of Contents pages.  Specifications section names and the section page numbers 
are shown at the bottom of each page. 

2. LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS 

In accordance with the provisions of California law, the District has determined that, at the 
time a Bid is submitted, the Bidder is acting in the capacity of Contractor and is required to be 
properly licensed in accordance with the laws of this State.  Accordingly, the Contractor shall 
possess a valid Class A license at the time that Contractor submits its Bid.  Contractor’s 
License Declaration is required as a part of the Contract documentation with the Bid submittal 
and failure to do so is grounds for declaring the Bid non-responsive.  Failure of the Bidder to 
obtain proper and adequate licensing for an award of a Contract shall constitute a failure to 
execute the Contract and shall result in the forfeiture of the security of the Bidder. 

3. DOCUMENT INTERPRETATION AND ADDENDA 

3.1 INTERPRETATION.  The Contract Documents are intended to fully inform the Bidder 
and to provide all details reasonably required for the execution of the proposed Work.  Any 
person contemplating the submission of a Bid shall have thoroughly examined all of the 
various parts of these Contract Documents, and should there be any doubt as to the meaning 
or intent of said Contract Documents, the Bidder shall immediately request from the District, 
in writing an interpretation thereof. 

3.2 ADDENDA.  Any interpretation or change in said Contract Documents will be made 
only in writing in the form of an Addendum to the Contract Documents, which will be furnished 
to all Bidders receiving a set of the Contract Documents.  Questions received less than three 
(3) business days prior to the Bid Opening date may not be answered.  Only formal responses 
by Addenda will be binding.  Bidders shall acknowledge the receipt of all Addenda by 
indicating in the appropriate place in the Bid that they have received all Addenda.  The District 
shall not be responsible for any other explanation or interpretations of said documents. 

4. BIDDER'S UNDERSTANDING 

4.1 Each Bidder shall carefully inspect and examine the project site and shall be 
thoroughly familiar with all the Contract Documents.  Failure to do so will not relieve the 
successful Bidder of its obligation to enter into a Contract and complete the contemplated 
work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents.  The Bidder shall verify and completely 
satisfy itself with all information concerning site and subsurface conditions. 

4.2 The submission of a Bid shall be conclusive evidence that the Bidder has investigated 
and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered, the character, quality, and scope of 
work to be performed, the quantities of materials to be finished, and as to the requirements of 
the Contract Documents. 

4.3 During the preparation of the Contract Documents, the District may have investigated 
the surface and subsurface conditions.  Topographic maps, reports or other information 
relating to surface and subsurface conditions obtained by the District's investigations, if any, 

40



 

Valve Replacement Project 3 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

are available for review by any interested party at the District's office located at 353 Santa 
Monica Drive, Oxnard, CA 93035, during normal working hours.  Any and all documents 
relating to investigations of the surface and subsurface conditions including, but not limited to, 
logs of test borings, topographic maps, reports, or other information shall not be considered a 
part of the Contract Documents unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Conditions or 
Project Plans and Specifications. 

Any investigations conducted by the District of surface and subsurface conditions were made 
for the purpose of study and design.  It is expressly understood and agreed that District 
assumes no responsibility whatsoever in respect to the sufficiency or accuracy of borings, or 
of the logs of test borings, topographic maps, reports, or of other investigations that have been 
made, or of the interpretations made thereof.  There is no warranty or guarantee, either 
expressed or implied, that the conditions indicated by said documents and investigations are 
representative of those actually existing conditions or throughout such area, or any part 
thereof, or that unforeseen developments may not occur or that other materials or conditions 
may not be encountered. 

Contractor is responsible for properly examining the site and making additional investigations 
as it may elect. Information derived from inspection of logs, test borings or topographic maps, 
or from drawings or other documents showing location of utilities and structures will not in any 
way relieve the Contractor from any risk or from properly fulfilling all the terms of the Contract 
Documents. 

4.4 Each Bidder shall be aware of and, if awarded a Contract, shall comply with Federal, 
State, and local laws, statutes, and ordinances relative to the execution of the Work.  This 
requirement includes, but is not limited to, applicable regulations concerning minimum wage 
rates, non-discrimination in the employment of labor, protection of public and employee safety 
and health, environmental protection, the protection of natural resources, fire protection, the 
burning and non-burning requirements, permits, fees, and similar subjects. 

5. DRAWINGS 

Where the Drawings are reduced in size from the original signed Mylar, a graphic scale will 
be provided.  If a dimension is not clearly specified, it shall be obtained from the District. 

No information derived from such inspection of records of investigations or compilation thereof 
made by the District or from the ENGINEER, or his assistants, will relieve the Bidder or 
Contractor in any way from its risk of properly fulfilling the terms of the Contract. 

6 TYPE OF PROPOSAL 

6.1 UNIT PRICE ITEMS 

Unless specifically stated otherwise, if the quantity of a unit-priced item is designated on the 
Bid Forms as an estimated quantity, and the actual quantity of the unit-priced item varies by 
more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the estimated quantity, an equitable adjustment in the 
Contract Price shall be made upon demand of either party.  The equitable adjustment shall 
be based upon increase or decrease in costs due solely to the variations exceeding twenty-
five percent (25%) of the estimated quantity.  If the variation in the estimated quantity is such 
as to cause an increase in the time necessary for completion, the Contractor may request in 
writing, an extension of time to be received by the District within ten (10) days from the 

41



 

Valve Replacement Project 4 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

beginning of the delay.  Upon the receipt of a written request for an extension, the ENGINEER 
will ascertain the facts and make an adjustment for extending the completion date as, in the 
judgment of the ENGINEER, is justified.  Adjustments under this Section shall be made by 
Change Order. 

6.2 LUMP SUM ITEMS 

When the work is to be submitted on a lump sum basis, a lump sum price shall be submitted 
in the appropriate place.  The total amount to be paid to the Contractor for the Bid items shall 
be the amount of the lump sum item as adjusted for additions or deletions resulting from 
changes in the scope by the District.  Lump sum items are shown as “LS” under the unit 
column in the Schedule of Work Items section of the Bid Form.  For example, a lump sum 
item such as potholing may involve a number of potholes, however, no matter how many are 
required, all the work is included in the submitted lump sum amount. 

In accordance with the Plans and Specifications, a Schedule of Values, which is an itemized 
list of the value or cost of each Bid item of work, shall be submitted to the ENGINEER prior to 
or at the pre-construction meeting. 

6.3 MOBILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION 

The cost of mobilization and demobilization of the Work shall not exceed ten percent (10%) 
of the total amount of the Bid excluding the cost of bonds and insurance unless otherwise 
stated in the Supplemental Conditions. 

7. SPECIAL BIDDING REQUIREMENTS 

In the event there is a need for special bidding procedures and requirements for parts of the 
work under this Contract, such requirements will be set forth in the Supplemental Conditions. 

8. PREPARATION OF BIDS 

8.1 All blank spaces in the Bid form must be completed in ink, in both words and figures 
where required.  No modifications shall be made to the forms.  Any modification to the Bid 
forms not specifically called for in the Contract Documents may result in the District rejecting 
the Bid as non-responsive. 

8.2 Any Bid may be deemed non-responsive which contains omissions, erasures, 
alterations, additions of any kind, prices uncalled for, obviously unbalanced prices, or which 
in any manner shall fail to conform to the conditions of the IFB. 

8.3 An authorized signatory shall execute the Bid form. 

If the Bidder is a joint venture/partnership, it shall submit with its Bid a duly notarized 
venture/partner-executed irrevocable Power of Attorney that designates one of the ventures 
as a Management Sponsor along with a signed copy of the Joint Venture/Partnership 
Agreement.  The Management Sponsor shall be empowered to execute the Bid on behalf of 
the Bidder and to act for and bind the Bidder in all matters relating to the Bid.  The Power of 
Attorney shall specifically state that each venture/partner shall be jointly and severally liable 
for any and all of the duties and obligations of the Bidder that is assumed under the Bid and 

42



 

Valve Replacement Project 5 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

under any contract arising therefrom.  The Management Sponsor shall execute the Bid on 
behalf of the joint venture/partnership in its legal name. 

8.4 The Bidder shall submit with its Bid a notarized Non-collusion Affidavit executed by 
the Bidder by the person or persons set forth above, otherwise the Bid will be regarded as not 
properly filed. 

9. STATE AND LOCAL SALES AND USE TAXES 

The state and local sales and use taxes, as required by the laws and statutes of the state and 
its political subdivisions, shall be paid by the Contractor.  Prices quoted in the Bid shall include 
sales tax, unless provision is made in the proposal form to itemize the tax separately. 

10. SUBMISSION OF BIDS 

All Bids must be submitted at the time and place and in the manner prescribed in the IFB.  
Bids must be made on the Bid forms provided herein.  If the IFB requires a hardcopy, each 
Bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope, marked to indicate its contents without being 
opened, and addressed in conformance with the instructions in the Contract Documents.  If 
the IFB requires use of the electronic bidding system, Bids must be made on the Bid forms 
provided in the system. 

11. SUBSTITUTIONS “OR-EQUAL” 

Except for District-selected equipment items and items where “no substitution” is clearly 
specified; materials, articles, devices, products, fixtures, form, type of construction, or process 
are indicated or specified for the purpose of establishing a standard of quality and facilitating 
the description of the material or process desired by District.  This procedure is not to be 
construed as eliminating from competition other products of equal or better quality by other 
manufacturers where fully suitable in design, and shall be deemed to be followed by the words 
“Or Equal”.  Such requests shall be made in writing by the Contractor to the District stating in 
detail how the proposed product differs in composition and performance from the designated 
product and shall be accompanied by complete data on which the District may make a 
determination on the merits of the proposed substitution. 

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 3400, Contractor may, in such cases, submit 
requests substantiating the substitution of “equal” items within thirty-five (35) days after the 
award of the Contract unless otherwise stated in the Supplemental Conditions or Project Plans 
and Specifications.  If the District rejects the substitution of an “Or Equal” item, the Contractor 
shall provide the specified item without extra cost to the District. 

12. MODIFIED AND ALTERNATIVE BIDS 

12.1 Bids must not deviate from what is requested in this IFB. 

12.2 A Bid shall be rejected when the Bidder imposes conditions or exceptions that would 
modify requirements of the IFB. 

43



 

Valve Replacement Project 6 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

13. NAMING OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

The Bidder shall submit in the Bid the names and business addresses of each subcontractor 
that will perform work under this Contract in excess of one-half of one percent (½%) of the 
amount of the total Bid, and shall list the portion of the work that will be done by such 
subcontractor.  If the Bidder fails to identify specifically any such subcontractor for any portion 
of the work to be performed under the Contract in excess of one-half of one percent (½%), 
the Bidder agrees to perform that portion of the work.  No listed subcontractor shall be 
substituted without prior District approval in accordance with Public Contract Code section 
4107.  Any proposed subcontractors must be properly and currently licensed as required by 
the subletting and subcontracting Fair Practice Act, commencing with Section 4100 of the 
Public Contract Code. 

14. DISCREPANCIES IN BID ITEMS 

14.1 The Bidder shall furnish a price for each individual Bid item, unless otherwise stated 
in the Schedule of Work Items.  Failure to do so may render the Bid(s) incomplete and non-
responsive and may cause its rejection.  The Bid shall state the Unit Prices, the total amount 
of each Bid item, and the "Total Bid Price" for which the Bidder proposes to supply the labor, 
goods, and completely perform the Contract.  If the Unit Price and the total amount stated by 
a Bidder for any item do not agree, the Unit Price alone shall be considered as representing 
the Bidder's intention, and the total price for that item shall be corrected by District to conform 
thereto.  District will correct the extended Unit Price and math errors to determine the Total 
Amount of Bid. 

14.2 Should any Unit Price be left blank, out of balance, or not accurately reflect the cost, 
the Bid may be considered non-responsive. 

14.3 Should any Unit Price or total price be left blank the Bid will be considered non-
responsive unless the blank item can be calculated from the information available (i.e., total 
price can be determined by multiplying the Unit Price by the estimated quantity). 

If any one line item is left blank, and the above situations do not apply, no attempt shall be 
made to reconcile the amounts.  The Bid in this case shall be considered non-responsive. 

14.4 If the cumulative total price for all the individual items and the Total Amount of Bid 
stated by a Bidder do not agree, the sum of the cumulative total price for each of the unit items 
shall be considered as representing the Bidder’s intention and the Total Amount of Bid entered 
by the Bidder shall be corrected by District to conform thereto. 

15. MISTAKES IN BIDS (AFTER OPENING) 

15.1 Bidder, who seeks to rescind its Bid due to a mistake or error in preparation of its Bid, 
shall notify District in writing within five (5) days of public opening. 

15.2 Bidders alleging mistakes in Bids may seek relief in accordance with Section 5100, et 
seq. of the California Public Contracts Code. 

44



 

Valve Replacement Project 7 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

16. BIDDERS INTERESTED IN MORE THAN ONE BID 

No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make or file, or be interested in more than 
one (1) Bid for the same work.  A person, firm, or corporation submitting a sub-proposal to a 
Bidder, or that has quoted prices or material to a Bidder, is not thereby disqualified from 
submitting a sub-proposal or quoting prices to other Bidders. 

17. BID SECURITY (Bid Bond) 

Bids must be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check drawn on a bank in good 
standing and payable to the District, or a Bidder’s bond in favor of the District issued by a 
Surety authorized to issue such bonds in the State of California, in an amount not less than 
ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the proposal submitted.  This Bid security shall be 
given as a guarantee that the Bidder will not withdraw the Bid for a period of ninety (90) 
calendar days after Bid opening, and that if awarded the Contract, the successful Bidder will 
execute the attached Contract and furnish the referenced documents within the time period 
specified in the Contract Documents.  Failure of the Contractor who is awarded the Contract 
to sign the Contract or provide the District with all of the referenced documents within the time 
period specified by the Contract Documents shall result in the forfeiture of the Bid security to 
the District. 

The Attorney-in-fact that executes a Bid bond on behalf of a Surety must attach a notarized 
copy of his power-of-attorney as evidence of his authority to bind the Surety on the date of 
execution of the bond.  If the Bidder elects to furnish a Bid bond, Bidder shall use the Bid bond 
form bound herewith, or one conforming substantially thereto in form and content. 

18. AWARD OF CONTRACT 

Within ninety (90) calendar days after the opening of Bids, the District may accept one of the 
Bids and issue a Notice of Intent to Award to the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder in 
accordance with Article 20, Basis of Award, below.  The Notice of Intent to Award shall be 
sent by U.S. mail or by other commercial business delivery method to all Bidders.  If the District 
receives no protest within five (5) business days of the date of Notice of Intent to Award, 
pursuant to Section 24.2 below, the District may issue a Notice of Award to the lowest 
responsive and responsible Bidder.  The Notice of Award shall be mailed or delivered to the 
office designated in the Bid.  In the event of failure of the lowest responsive and responsible 
Bidder to sign and return the Contract with an acceptable performance bond and labor and 
materials bond, certificates of insurance and policies, certificate regarding worker’s 
compensation insurance, and other required documents within the time specified in the 
Contract Documents, the District may award the Contract to the next lowest responsible and 
responsive Bidder.  Such award, if made, will be made within ninety (90) calendar days after 
the Bid opening date. 

19. RETURN OF BID SECURITY 

Within sixty (60) calendar days after the award of the Contract, the District will return the Bid 
securities, except Bidder bonds and guarantees that have been forfeited, to all Bidders whose 
Bids are not to be further considered in awarding the Contract.  Retained Bid securities will 
be held until the Contract has been finally executed, but in no case longer than sixty (60) 
calendar days after award of the Contract, after which all Bid securities, other than Bid bonds 

45



 

Valve Replacement Project 8 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

and guarantees which have been forfeited, will be returned to the respective Bidders whose 
proposals they accompanied. 

20. BASIS OF AWARD 

If awarded, the award will be made by the District on the basis of the Bid from the lowest 
responsive and responsible Bidder that, in the District's sole and absolute judgment, will best 
serve the interest of the District. 

21. EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 

The successful Bidder shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the Notice of 
Award, sign and deliver the Contract to the District together with the acceptable bonds, 
certificates of insurance and policies, certificate of worker’s compensation insurance, and 
other documents as required in the Contract Documents.  Within twenty-one (21) calendar 
days after receiving the signed Contract and all other required documents that are found 
acceptable to the District, the District's authorized agents will sign the Contract.  Signature by 
both parties constitutes execution of the Contract. 

22. PERFORMANCE BOND 

The successful Bidder shall file a Performance Bond with the District on the form bound 
herewith in the full amount of the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance of the 
Contract for the construction of the work, and to cover all warranties against defective 
workmanship or materials, or both, for a period of one (1) year after the filing date of Notice 
of Completion.  The Surety furnishing this bond shall have a sound financial standing, be a 
State of California admitted Surety insurer and either submit those documents set forth in 
California Code of Civil Procedures, section 995.660, items (1) through (4), so that the District 
may determine whether the bond is sufficient in accordance with California Code of Civil 
Procedure section 995.660, or have a Best rating of A VII or better. 

23. LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND (Payment Bond) 

The successful Bidder shall file with the District at the time of execution of the Contract, a 
Labor and Materials Bond on the form bound herewith in the amount of one-hundred percent 
(100%) of the Contract Price, as security for the payment of all persons supplying labor and 
materials for the construction of the work.  The Surety furnishing this bond shall have a sound 
financial standing, be a State of California admitted Surety insurer and either submit those 
documents set forth in California Code of Civil Procedures, section 995.660, items (1) through 
(4), so that the District may determine whether the bond is sufficient in accordance with 
California Code of Civil Procedure section 995.660, or have a Best rating of A VII or better. 

24. POWER-OF-ATTORNEY 

The Attorney-in-fact (Resident Agent) that executes the Performance Bond or Labor and 
Materials Bond on behalf of the Surety must attach a notarized copy of his power-of-attorney 
as evidence of his authority to bind the Surety on the date of execution of the bonds. 

46



 

Valve Replacement Project 9 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

25. BID PROTESTS 

25.1 IFB PROTESTS.  The purpose of this IFB is to obtain competitive Bids and/or 
proposals from Bidders.  Any Bidder that believes a particular specification or requirement is 
impractical, unduly restrictive, or ambiguous may advise District of its concerns, within ten 
(10) business days of issuance of this IFB, by filing a written protest with District’s Contracts 
Officer.  The protest will be evaluated, and, if deemed warranted, the IFB Documents may be 
revised by issuing an Addendum.  Any Bidder, that has not filed its protest within ten (10) 
business days after issuance of this IFB, will be deemed, at the minimum, to have accepted 
this IFB as reasonable, not unduly restrictive, and unambiguous. 

25.2 CONTRACT AWARD PROTEST.  Bidders are permitted to protest District’s decision 
to award a Contract.  Unless otherwise specified in the IFB, the Bidder shall have five (5) 
business days from the date of issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award, or similar 
announcement, to file a protest. 

The protest must be filed in writing with the Contracts Administrator and must specify, in detail, 
the grounds upon which the protest is based.  A valid protest must: 

1. Come from an actual Bidder for the Contract; 

2. Come from a Bidder which has a lower Bid than the successful Bidder; and, 

3. Contain the following information: 
a. Name, address, and telephone number of the Protestor. 
b. The title and Job/Contract number of the award being protested. 
c. A detailed statement citing the provisions being protested, including the reasons 

for the protest. 

If a protest is filed on the grounds that the (protesting) Bidder is the lowest responsive 
responsible Bidder, the Contract shall not be awarded until either the protest has been 
withdrawn or the District’s Contract Officer has issued a Notice of Decision on the matter. 

A protest shall not be considered valid if filed by a Bidder who cannot show that it should be 
awarded the Contract if its protest is accepted. 

There is no basis for protest if the District in its sole discretion determines to rejects all bids 
based on the best interests of the District. 

The Contracts Officer will issue a written final decision by first-class mail and/or by electronic 
means, such as facsimile transmission or e-mail, within ten (10) business days of receiving 
the written protest and prior to Contract Award. 

26. NOTICE TO PROCEED 

Once the successful Bidder signs and returns the Contract with an acceptable performance 
bond and labor and materials bond, certificates of insurance and policies, certificate regarding 
worker’s compensation insurance, and other required documents within the time specified in 
the Contract Documents (refer to Section 21 above), the District will fully execute the Contract 

47



 

Valve Replacement Project 10 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

and issue a Notice to Proceed which states the date to proceed with construction. Bidders 
should be prepared to start work upon the Notice to Proceed.  

27. RETENTION 

Pursuant to Section 10261 (b) of the Public Contract Code, when the District has made a 
finding prior to bid that a specified project is substantially complex and therefore requires a 
higher retention amount than five percent (5%), the District shall include both this finding and 
the actual retention for the specified project amount in the Invitation for Bids.  Any changes in 
retention shall be located in the Supplemental Conditions of the Construction Contract 
included in the Invitation for Bids. 

28. DISTRICT RIGHTS 

28.1 District may investigate the qualifications of any Bidder under consideration inclusive 
of, but not limited to, the information provided in the Bid form. 

28.2 District may require confirmation of information furnished by the Bidder, and require 
additional evidence of qualifications to perform the work described in this IFB. 

28.3 District reserves the right to: 

1. Reject any or all of the Bids for any reason whatsoever, at its discretion, including 
multiple Bids, if multiple Bids are received; 

2. Reject any Bids prejudicial to interests of the District or to other Bidders; 

3. Reject any Bid that, in the opinion of District, is so unbalanced in comparison to 
other Bids received and/or to District’s internal estimates that it does not accurately 
reflect the cost to perform the Work; 

4. Cancel the entire Bid; 

5. Issue subsequent Bids; 

6. Seek the assistance of outside technical experts to evaluate Bids, disqualify the 
Bid(s) upon evidence of collusion with intent to defraud or other illegal practices on 
the part of the Bidder(s); 

7. Waive any errors or informalities in any Bid, to the extent permitted by law; 

8. District may, prior to, or after Contract award, delete any Bid line item at the line 
item Bid price.  If District elects to request additive or deductive item cost in 
Bidding, as stated in the Supplemental Conditions, then District shall follow Public 
Contract Code Section 20103.8.  Further, if District chooses determining the lowest 
Bidder other than as in Public Contract Code Section 20103.8(a), it will specify the 
same in the Supplemental Conditions.  If District elects to delete any Bid line item 
after award, it shall be done pursuant to a Change Order. 

48



 

Valve Replacement Project 11 of 11 Instructions to Bidders 

9, Investigate the qualifications on any Bidder under consideration, inclusive of, but 
not limited to, the information provide in the Bid Submittal Forms. The District may 
require confirmation or additional evidence of qualifications to perform the work.   

END INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

49



 

 

PART 2 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

50



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 7 Bid Form 

PROPOSAL TO 
CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
Contract No. CI 105 

Name of Bidder:   

Business Address:   

Phone Number:   

TO THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT: 

Pursuant to and in compliance with the IFB and the other documents relating thereto, 
the undersigned Bidder, being fully familiar with the terms of the Contract Documents, 
local conditions affecting the performance of the Contract, the character, quality, 
quantities, and scope of the work, and the cost of the work at the place where the work 
is to be done, hereby proposes and agrees to perform within the time stipulated in the 
Contract, including all of its component parts and everything required to be performed, 
and to furnish any and all of the labor, material, tools, equipment, transportation, 
services, permits, utilities, and all other items necessary to perform the contract and 
complete in a workmanlike manner, all of the work required in connection with the 
construction of said work all in strict conformity with the plans and specifications and 
other Contract Documents, including addenda Nos.:      ,      ,      , and      , on file in 
the office of the Owner for the prices hereinafter set forth. 

The undersigned as Bidder, declares that the only persons or parties interested in this 
proposal as principals are those named herein; that this proposal is made without 
collusion with any person, firm, or corporation; and Bidder proposes and agrees, if the 
proposal is accepted, that Bidder will execute a contract with the Owner in the form 
set forth in the Contract Documents and that Bidder will accept in full payment thereof 
the following prices, to wit: 

51



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 7 Bid Form 

ITEM 
NO. QUANTITY DESCRIPTION 

UNIT 
PRICE 

TOTAL 
AMOUNT 

1. 1 Mobilization, Permits, Cleanup, & Demobilization Lump Sum $  

2. 9 Install 4-inch Valve Complete in Place E.A. $  

3. 2 Install 6-inch Valve Complete in Place E.A. $  

4. 7 Install 8-inch Valve Complete in Place E.A. $  

5. 1 Dewatering L.S. $  

6. 1 Shoring L.S. $  

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BID ITEMS 1 THROUGH 6 

  $  

 

Contracting Firm:   
  

52



 

Valve Replacement Project 3 of 7 Bid Form 

Award of Contract, if awarded, will not be made for less than the sum of all the Base 
Bid Items 1 through 6.  Any additive or deductive work item on the Schedule of Work 
Items may be selected by District after evaluation of Bids or, if required, after start of 
construction. 

Each individual Bid item shall be determined from visiting the work site, reviewing the 
Plans and Specifications, and all other portions of the Contract Documents, and shall 
include all items necessary to complete the Work, including the assumption of all 
obligations, duties, and responsibilities necessary to the successful completion of the 
Contract, and the furnishing of all materials and equipment required to be incorporated 
in and form a permanent part of the Work:  tools, equipment, supplies, transportation, 
facilities, labor, superintendence, and services required to perform and complete the 
Work; and bonds, insurance and submittals; all as per the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, whether or not expressly listed or designated. 

It is understood that the foregoing quantities are approximate only and are solely for 
the purpose of facilitating the comparison of Bids, and that the Contractor's 
compensation will be computed upon the basis of the actual quantities in the 
completed work whether they be more or less than those shown. 

A. The General Contractor (Contractor) must perform at least fifty-one percent (51%) 
of the total project work awarded and may sublet no more than forty-nine percent 
(49%) of the total project work awarded to any one subcontractor. 
The name and location of place of business of each subcontractor who will perform 
work or labor or render service to the General Contractor in or about the 
construction of the work, or improvements, in an amount in excess of one-half of 
one percent (½%) of the General Contractor's total Bid, and the portion of the work 
that will be done by each subcontractor is set forth as follows: 

Name of Subcontractor Location of Office Work Subcontracted 
      

License #:  

Name of Subcontractor Location of Office Work Subcontracted 
      

License #  

Except as hereinabove provided, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that 
Contractor will perform all required work in accordance with Section 4106 of the 
Public Contract Code. 

B. Person who inspected site of the proposed work for Bidder: 

Name:   Date of Inspection:   

53



 

Valve Replacement Project 4 of 7 Bid Form 

C. It is agreed that, if requested by the District, the Bidder shall furnish a notarized 
financial statement, references, and other information, sufficiently comprehensive 
to permit an appraisal of his current financial condition. 

D. ACCOMPANYING THIS BID IS   (Insert the words 
"cash", "Bidder's bond", or "certified check", as the case may be) in an amount 
equal to at least ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the Bid, payable to: 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

The undersigned deposits the above-named security as a proposal guarantee and 
agrees that it shall be forfeited to the District as liquidated damages in case this 
proposal is accepted by the District and the undersigned fails to execute a contract 
with the District as specified in the Contract Documents or fails to furnish the 
required payment and performance bonds and insurance certificates and 
endorsements.  Should the District be required to engage the services of an 
attorney in connection with the enforcement of this Bid, Bidder promises to pay 
District's reasonable attorney's fees, incurred with or without suit. 

E. Bidders shall indicate opposite each item listed below the name of the 
manufacturer or Supplier proposed to be used under the Contract.  Award of a 
Contract under this proposal (Bid) will not imply approval by the District of a 
manufacturer or Supplier listed by the Bidder.  However, if a manufacturer or 
Supplier is acceptable to the District, the successful Bidder shall furnish the items 
from the manufacturer or Supplier indicated.  Each contracting Bidder shall inform 
in writing each named manufacturer or Supplier that the so named is listed for 
information purposes only and may be substituted, changed, or omitted by the 
successful Bidder, subject to the approval of the Bidder, without subjecting the 
District to any liability for the substitution, change, or omission.  The successful 
Bidder shall reimburse the District for any expenses incurred by the District as a 
result of the successful Bidder's failure to so notify each named manufacturer or 
Supplier.  Lead time for delivery of equipment from date of ordering shall also be 
shown. 

 Lead Time 
 Item Manufacturer Calendar Days 
      

      

      

      

      

      

      

54



 

Valve Replacement Project 5 of 7 Bid Form 

F. The names of all persons interested in the foregoing proposals as principals are 
as follows: (NOTE – If Bidder or other interested is a corporation, state legal name 
of corporation, also names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and manager 
thereof; if a general partnership, state true name of firm also names of all individual 
partners composing firm; if a limited partnership, the names of all general partners 
and limited partners; if Bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first 
and last name in full; if the Bidder is a joint venture, state the complete name of 
each venturer.) 

  

  

G. Licensed in accordance with the California State Contractor's License Law. 

Contractor's License No.   

Signature of Bidder:   

  

  

  

Business Address, Complete:   

  

Dated:  , 2022 Telephone Number:   

NOTE: If Bidder is a corporation, the legal name of the corporation shall be set forth 
above, together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign 
Contracts on behalf of the corporation and the corporate seal; if Bidder is a 
partnership, the true name of the firm shall be set forth above, together with 
the signature of the partner or partners authorized to sign Contracts on behalf 
of the partnership; if the Bidder is an individual, his signature shall be placed 
above; if the Bidder is a joint venture, the name of the joint venture shall be 
set forth above with the signature of an authorized representative of each 
venturer. 

55



 

Valve Replacement Project 6 of 7 Bid Form 

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE DECLARATION 

(Business and Professions Code Section 7028.15) 

The undersigned declares that he or she is   

of  , 

the party making the foregoing Bid (Hereinafter, the "Bidder"). 

1. Bidder's Contractor's License Number is as follows:  , 

2. The expiration date of Bidder's Contractor's License is:  , 
2022. 

3. Bidder acknowledges that Section 7028.15(e) of the Business and Professions 
Code provides as follows: 

"Unless one of the foregoing exceptions applies, a Bid submitted to a public agency 
by a Contractor who is not licensed in accordance with this chapter shall be 
considered non-responsive and shall be rejected by the public agency.  Unless 
one of the foregoing exceptions applies, a local public agency shall, before 
awarding a contract or issuing a purchase order, verify that the Contractor was 
properly licensed when the Contractor submitted the Bid. 

Any contract awarded to, or any purchase order issued to, a Contractor who is not 
licensed pursuant to this chapter is void." 

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 

correct. 

Executed on  , 2022, at   

  (Insert city and state where declaration signed) 

  
Signature 

  
Typed Name 

  
Title 

  
Name of Bidder

56



 

Valve Replacement Project 7 of 7 Bid Form 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
AND CERTIFICATION OF ABILITY TO 
PROVIDE COVERAGES SPECIFIED 

I,  , the  , 
 (Name of Signer) (President, Secretary, Manager, Owner or Representative) 

of   

certify that Section 11 of the Construction Agreement has been read and understood, 

and that   
(Name of Company/Corporation/Owner) 

is able to provide the coverages required by District on the forms required by District.  

Company/Owner understands no changes will be made to requirements after award 

of Contract. 

  
Signature of President, Secretary, Manager, Owner or Representative 

  
Typed or Printed Name 

  
Title 

  
Date 

 

57



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 2 Bidder’s Bond 

THIS BOND FORM TO BE FULLY EXECUTED 

BIDDER'S BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, 

That we,  , as principal, and 

 , as Surety, are held and firmly 

bound unto Channel Islands Beach Community Services District in the sum of  
  

Dollars ($), to be paid to the said District, its successors and assigns, for which 
payment, will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors or assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, 
That if the certain proposal of the above bounden   

___________________ is accepted by Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District and if the above bounden 

 , his heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, shall duly enter into and execute a Contract for such 
construction, and shall execute and deliver the Labor and Material, and the Faithful 
Performance Bonds and other Contract Documents described, within fifteen (15) days 
from the date of the award and notice of the above bounden   

  and from said District, that said for Contract is ready execution, 

then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full 
force and effect. 

BIDDER PRINCIPAL 

    

    

SURETY 

  

  

58



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 2 Bidder’s Bond 

THIS AFFIDAVIT TO BE FULLY EXECUTED 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

Affirmed in the STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

the COUNTY OF VENTURA, 

and the CITY OF   

on the   day of   
 (Day) (Month) 

by  , affiant, the 
(Printed Name of Signatory) 

  
(Title: President, Secretary, Manager, Owner or Representative of) 

  
(Name of Company or Corporation or Owner) 

as the person, corporation or company who makes the accompanying proposal, 

having first been duly sworn, deposes and says: 

That such proposal is genuine, and not sham or collusive, nor made in the interest or 

behalf of any person not herein named, and that the Bidder has not directly or indirectly 

induced or solicited any other Bidder to put in a sham Bid, or any other person, firm 

or corporation to refrain from Bidding, and that the Bidder has not in any manner 

sought by collusion to secure for itself an advantage over any other Bidder. 

  
Signature of: 

59



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 12 Business Info 

PROPOSER’S BUSINESS INFORMATION (PreQual) 

Table of Contents 
NOTE:  If you are not currently on the District’s Prequalified Contractors list, the 
following information must be completed and uploaded to Public Purchase Bidding 
System.  The District will review Business Information to determine if the apparent 
low bidder is responsible.  If the District finds the apparent low bidder to be non-
responsible, the District will complete the process with the next lowest bidder. 

A. Business Information 
B. Business Requirements 
C. Financial Information 
D. Safety 
E. References/Relevant Projects 

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR THIS SOLICITATION/CATEGORY: 
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

60



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 12 Business Info 

A Business Information 
Legal 
Business 
Name:  Date:  

Address:   
 Street Address Suite # 

    
 City State ZIP Code 

Contact:  Title:  

Phone:  Email:  
    
Length of time in 
business:  

Length of time at 
current location:  Federal Tax No.  

In the last five years, has your firm changed names or license numbers?   

If yes, provide prior names and licenses.   

California State Contractor’s License No.:  

Department of Industrial Relations Registration No.:  

Names and titles of officers of the Business: 
 

 

 

Is your firm incorporated? 
YES 

 
NO 

 

Name and remittance address that will appear on invoices: 
 

 

Is your firm a sole proprietorship doing business under a different name? 
YES 

 
NO 

 

If yes, please indicate sole proprietorship name and the name under which you are doing business: 

 

61



 

Valve Replacement Project 3 of 12 Business Info 

B Business Requirements 
1. Contractor has submitted evidence of a liability insurance policy with a policy limit 

of at least $5,000,000 per occurrence (refer to Section 11 of the Construction 
Agreement for specific insurance requirements). 

  Yes   No 

2. Contractor has submitted evidence of current workers’ compensation insurance 
policy as required by the Labor Code or is legally self-insured pursuant to Labor 
Code section 3700 et. seq. 

  Yes   No 

3. Contractor has carefully reviewed the insurance and indemnification requirements 
set forth in Section 4, and has signed the attached Acknowledgment of District 
Insurance and Indemnification Requirements (on Page 7). 

  Yes   No 

4. Has your contractor’s license been revoked at any time in the last five years? 
  Yes   No 

5. Has a surety firm completed a contract on your behalf, or paid for completion 
because your firm was default terminated by the project owner within the last five 
(5) years? 

  Yes   No 

6. At the time of submitting this proposal, is your firm ineligible to bid on or be awarded 
a public works contract, or perform as a subcontractor on a public works contract, 
pursuant to either Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor Code section 1777.7? 

  Yes   No 
If the answer is “Yes,” state the beginning and ending dates of the period of 
debarment. 

7. At any time during the last five years, has your firm or any of its owners or officers 
been convicted of a crime involving the awarding of a contract of a government 
construction project, or the bidding or performance of a government contract?  

  Yes   No 
(Contractor may be immediately disqualified if the answer to any of the questions 
in D through G above is “yes.”) 

8. At any time in the last five years, has your firm been assessed and paid liquidated 
damages after completion of a project under a construction contract with either a 
public or private owner? 

  Yes   No 
If yes, explain on a separate sheet of paper, identifying all such projects by 
owner, owner’s address, the date of completion of the project, amount of 
liquidated damages assessed and all other information necessary to fully explain 
the assessment of liquidated damages. 

62



 

Valve Replacement Project 4 of 12 Business Info 

9. In the last five years has your firm, or any firm with which any of your company’s 
owners, officers or partners was associated, been debarred, disqualified, removed 
or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing, any government agency or 
public works project for any reason? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” explain on a separate sheet of paper.  State whether the firm involved 
was the firm applying for pre-qualification here or another firm.  Identify by name 
of the company, the name of the person within your firm who was associated with 
that company, the year of the event, the owner of the project, the project and the 
basis for the action. 

NOTE: “Associated with” refers to another construction firm in which an owner, 
partner or officer of your firm held a similar position, and which is listed in 
response to question 1 on page 8 of this form. 

10. In the last five years, has your firm been denied an award of a public works contract 
based on a finding by a public agency that your company was not a responsible 
bidder? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” explain on a separate sheet of paper.  Identify the year of the event, the 
owner, the project and the basis for the finding by the public agency. 

11. In the past five years, has any claim against your firm concerning your firm’s work 
on a construction project been filed in court or arbitration? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” on separate sheets of paper identify the claim(s) by providing the project 
name, date of the claim, name of the claimant, a brief description of the nature of 
the claim, the court in which the case was filed and a brief description of the 
status of the claim (pending or, if resolved, a brief description of the resolution). 

12. In the past five years, has your firm made any claim against a project owner 
concerning work on a project or payment for a contract and filed that claim in court 
or arbitration? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” on separate sheets of paper identify the claim by providing the project 
name, date of the claim, name of the entity (or entities) against whom the claim 
was filed, a brief description of the nature of the claim, the court in which the 
case was filed and a brief description of the status of the claim (pending, or if 
resolved, a brief description of the resolution). 

13. Within the last five years, has there ever been a period when your firm had 
employees but was without workers’ compensation insurance or state-approved 
self-insurance? 

  Yes   No 
5 points for either “No” or “Yes” indicating 1 such instance. 
0 points for any other answer. 

63



 

Valve Replacement Project 5 of 12 Business Info 

14. In the last five years, has any insurance carrier, for any form of insurance, refused 
to renew the insurance policy for your firm? 

  Yes   No 
5 points for either “No” or “Yes” indicating 1 such instance. 
3 points for “Yes” indicating  2 such instances.  
0 points for “Yes” or if more than 2 such instances. 

64



 

Valve Replacement Project 6 of 12 Business Info 

C Financial Information 

1. Attach to your Bid Form Submittal a complete set of current financial statements 
(as current as December 2018, if possible), including an accountant's opinion and 
footnotes, for two (2) preceding fiscal years. 
Financial Statement include at a minimum: balance sheet, statement of income 
and retained earnings, and statement of cash flow. 

2. Surety Company:   
 Name, address, and phone number 

3. How many years has your organization been in business in California as a 
contractor under your present business name and license number?   years 

4. Is your firm currently the debtor in a bankruptcy case? 
  Yes   No 

If “yes,” please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition, showing the case number, 
and the date on which the petition was filed. 

5. Was your firm in bankruptcy at any time during the last five years?  (This question 
refers only to a bankruptcy action that was not described in answer to question 7, 
above.) 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition, showing the case number 
and the date on which the petition was filed, and a copy of the Bankruptcy Court’s 
discharge order, or of any other document that ended the case, if no discharge 
order was issued. 

6. During the last five years, has a surety company ever denied your firm bond 
coverage, or has there ever been a period of time when your firm had no surety 
bond in place during a public construction project when one was required? 

  Yes   No 
If yes, provide details on a separate signed sheet indicating the date when your 
firm was denied coverage and the name of the company, or companies, which 
denied coverage; and the period during which you had no surety bond in place. 

65



 

Valve Replacement Project 7 of 12 Business Info 

D Prevailing Wages 

1. In the last 5 years, were there any occasion(s) in which your firm was required to 
pay either back wages or penalties for your own firm’s failure to comply with the 
state’s prevailing wage laws? 

  Yes   No 

2. In the last five years, has there been more than one occasion on which your own 
firm has been penalized or required to pay back wages for failure to comply with 
the Federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements? 

  Yes   No 

3. In the last five years, has your firm been found to have violated any provision of 
California apprenticeship laws or regulations, or the laws pertaining to use of 
apprentices on public works? 

  Yes   No 
If yes, provide the date(s) of such findings, and attach copies of the Department’s 
final decision(s). 

4. Provide the name, address and telephone number of the apprenticeship program 
sponsor(s) (approved by the California Division of Apprenticeship Standards) that 
will provide apprentices to your company for use on any public work project for 
which you are awarded a contract by Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District 

5. If your firm operates its own State-approved apprenticeship program: 
a) Identify the craft or crafts in which your firm provided apprenticeship training in 

the past year. 
b) State the year in which each such apprenticeship program was approved, and 

attach evidence of the most recent California Apprenticeship Council 
approval(s) of your apprenticeship program(s). 

c) State the number of individuals who were employed by your firm as apprentices 
at any time during the past three years in each apprenticeship and the number 
of persons who, during the past three years, completed apprenticeships in 
each craft while employed by your firm. 

 

 

 

 

 

66



 

Valve Replacement Project 8 of 12 Business Info 

E Safety 
1. Has any safety regulatory agency (examples: CalOSHA, Federal OSHA, MSHA, 

Department of Water Resources, Division of Dam Safety, etc.) cited and assessed 
penalties against your firm (company-wide) for any violations of its safety or health 
regulations in the past five years? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” attached a separate signed page describing the citations, including 
information about the dates of the citations, the nature of the violation, the project 
on which the citation(s) was or were issued, the amount of penalty paid, if any.  If 
the citation was appealed to the Occupational Safety and Health Appeals Board 
and a decision has been issued, state the case number and the date of the 
decision. 

2. Has the EPA, Air Quality Management District, Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, Department of Water Resources, or any other regulatory agency for 
environmental laws cited either your firm or the owner of a project on which your 
firm was the contractor, in the past five years? 

  Yes   No 
If “yes,” attach a separate signed page describing each citation. 

3. How often do you require documented safety meetings to be held for construction 
employees and field supervisors during the course of a project?   

4. List your firm’s Experience Modification Rate (EMR) (California workers’ 
compensation insurance) for each of the past three premium years: 
NOTE: Your workers’ compensation insurance carrier issues an Experience 
Modification Rate to your firm annually. 

Current year:   
Previous year:   
Year prior to previous year:   

If your EMR for any of these three years is or was 1.00 or higher you may, if you 
wish, attach a letter of explanation. 

5. Provide the following OSHA Recordable Injury and Illness Statistics for the current 
year and previous 3 years: 

 2021 2020 2019 2018 

Fatalities     
Lost Work Days Cases     
Lost and Restricted Day Cases     
Other Reportable Injury Cases     
Total Lost and Restricted Days     
OSHA Recordable Incident Rate     
OSHA Lost Time Incident Rate     
Total Hours Worked     

67



 

Valve Replacement Project 9 of 12 Business Info 

6. Submit the following items: 
a) Table of Contents of Contractor's current Safety Plan or Program 
b) Table of Contents of Contractor's Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) 
c) OSHA 300 and 400 logs for the Current year and previous 5 years 
d) If a fatality has been recorded on the firm’s OSHA logs in the last 5 years, 

please provide a separate signed page describing the circumstances of each 
fatality and what corrective actions were implemented. 

Contractor further acknowledges that it shall be required to submit its full 
Injury and Illness Prevention Plan for review and acceptance by District, 
upon award of a contract with the District. 

68



 

Valve Replacement Project 10 of 12 Business Info 

CONFIDENTIAL – INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN NOT SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE 

5. Performance History / Relevant Projects 
This information provided in determining bidder responsibility, and is considered a confidential document not subject to public disclosure under 
California law. 

PROJECT NAME 
AND LOCATION ROLE DESCRIPTION 

OF WORK 

OWNER’S NAME, ADDRESS, 
PHONE NO., AND CONTACT 

PERSON 

CONTRACT 
VALUE 

ESTIMATED 
COMPLETION DATE 

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Prime 

  Sub   $  

69



 

Valve Replacement Project 11 of 12 Business Info 

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 
  Prime 

  Sub   $  

 

70



 

Valve Replacement Project 12 of 12 Business Info 

Please list at least three references for projects of similar size and scope, including governmental agencies if available. 

1) AGENCY/COMPANY:  

 PROJECT NAME:  

 ADDRESS:  

   

 CONTACT PERSON:  EMAIL:  

 PHONE NUMBER:  LENGTH OF CONTRACT:  

 WORK PERFORMED:  

 INITIAL COST/CHANGE ORDERS:  
 

2) AGENCY/COMPANY:  

 PROJECT NAME:  

 ADDRESS:  

   

 CONTACT PERSON:  EMAIL:  

 PHONE NUMBER:  LENGTH OF CONTRACT:  

 WORK PERFORMED:  

 INITIAL COST/CHANGE ORDERS:  
 

3) AGENCY/COMPANY:  

 PROJECT NAME:  

 ADDRESS:  

   

 CONTACT PERSON:  EMAIL:  

 PHONE NUMBER:  LENGTH OF CONTRACT:  

 WORK PERFORMED:  

 INITIAL COST/CHANGE ORDERS:  

71



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 11 Construction Agreement 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT FOR CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

THIS AGREEMENT, Contract No. CI 105, is made and entered into, to be effective, 
this ____ day of ___________, 2022, by and between [company name], hereinafter 
referred to as "Contractor", and CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT, Ventura County, California, by and through its Board of 
Directors, hereinafter referred to as "District". 

SECTION 1 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Contractor certifies and agrees that it is fully familiar with all the terms, conditions and 
obligations of the Contract Documents as hereinafter defined, the location of the job 
site, and the conditions under which the work is to be performed, and that it enters 
into this Contract based upon its investigation of all such matters and is in no way 
relying upon any opinions or representations of District.  It is agreed that this Contract 
represents the entire agreement.  It is further agreed that the Contract Documents, 
which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid forms/Contractor’s 
Bid, the Construction Agreement, any Change Orders or Addenda, General 
Conditions, Supplemental Conditions, Project Plans and Specifications, District 
Standard Specifications and Standard Plans (for Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water 
Facilities), and/or Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
are incorporated into this Contract by reference, with the same force and effect as if 
the same were set forth at length herein, and that Contractor and its subcontractors, 
if any, will be and are bound by any and all of said Contract Documents, insofar as 
they relate in any part or in any way, directly or indirectly, to the work covered by this 
Contract. 

The Contractor's signing of the Contract signifies its acceptance of the time of 
completion as being sufficient for completion of the Work, as well as acceptance of all 
of the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
  

72



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 11 Construction Agreement 

SECTION 2 
PROJECT 

The project is described as: 
 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
  
The scope of this project involves abandonment of approximately 750 of 4” AC 
waterline, construction of 630 LF of 6” PVC and 100 LF of 8” PVC waterlines. The 
project also included removal and abandonment of 11 service connections and 
meters and installation of 11 new service connection and meters. Contractor will 
pothole utilities in conflict to locate exact depth and locations. 

SECTION 3 
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

Project shall be performed in accordance with the attached Plans and Specifications.  
Said Plans and Specifications including Project Plans and Specifications, District 
Standard Plans, and/or Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction and any revision, amendments, or addenda thereto are attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as part of this Contract and referred to by reference.  The 
work to be done must also be in accordance with the Contract Documents, which are 
incorporated herein and referred to by references. 

SECTION 4 
TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 

Contractor agrees to commence the Project on the date set forth in the "Notice to 
Proceed" sent by District and shall diligently prosecute the work to Final Completion 
within thirty (30) business days from the date set forth in the Notice to Proceed, 
excluding delays caused or authorized by the District as set forth in Section 5.3.3 of 
the General Conditions included in these Contract Documents.  The time for 
completion includes five (5) days determined by District likely to be inclement weather 
when Contractor will be unable to work. 

SECTION 5 
TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

Time is of the essence on this Contract.  As required by the Contract Documents, 
Contractor shall prepare and obtain approval of all shop drawings, details and 
samples, and do all other things necessary and incidental to the prosecution of 
Contractor's work in conformance with an approved construction progress schedule.  
Contractor shall coordinate the work covered by this Contract with that of all other 

73



 

Valve Replacement Project 3 of 11 Construction Agreement 

Contractors, subcontractors and of the District, in a manner that will facilitate the 
efficient completion of the entire work in accordance with Section 4 herein of this 
Construction Agreement.  District shall have complete control of the premises on 
which the work is to be performed and shall have the right to decide the time or order 
in which the various portions of the work shall be installed or the priority of the work of 
other subcontractors, and in general, all matters representing the timely and orderly 
conduct of the work of Contractor on the premises. 

SECTION 6 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR DELAY 

The parties agree that if the total work called for under this Contract, in all parts and 
requirements, is not completed within the time specified in Section 4 above, plus the 
allowance made for delays or extensions authorized under Section 5 of the General 
Conditions, the District will sustain damage that would be extremely difficult and 
impracticable to ascertain.  The parties therefore agree that Contractor will pay to 
District the sum of One Thousand Dollars ($1000) per day for each and every 
calendar day during which completion of the project is so delayed. 

Contractor agrees to pay such Liquidated Damages and further agrees that District 
may offset the amount of Liquidated Damages from any monies due or that may 
become due Contractor under this Contract. 

SECTION 7 
CONTRACT PRICE 

District agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept as full consideration for the 
faithful performance of this Contract, subject to any subsequent additions or 
deductions as provided in approved Change Orders, the sum of [Bid price] 
($XXX,XXX) as itemized on the attached Exhibit "A".  Payments shall be made in 
accordance with provisions in Section 7 of the General Conditions. 

SECTION 8 
SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES IN LIEU OF RETENTION OF FUNDS 

Pursuant to California Public Contracts Code Section 22300, the Contractor will be 
entitled to post approved securities with the District or an approved financial institution 
in order to have the District release funds retained by the District to insure performance 
of the Contract.  Contractor shall be required to execute an addendum to this Contract 
in a form required by District, together with escrow instructions and any other 
documents in order to effect this substitution. 

74



 

Valve Replacement Project 4 of 11 Construction Agreement 

SECTION 9 
COMPLETION 

Within ten (10) days after the contract completion date of the Project, Contractor shall 
file with the District's ENGINEER its affidavit stating that all workers and persons have 
been paid in full, and that there are no claims outstanding against the Project for either 
labor or material, except those certain items, if any, to be set forth in an affidavit 
covering disputed claims, or items in connection with Stop Notices that have been 
filed under the provisions of the statutes of the State of California.  District may require 
affidavits or certificates of payment and/or releases from any subcontractor, laborer or 
material Supplier. 

SECTION 10 
SURETY BONDS 

Contractor shall, before entering upon the performance of this Agreement, furnish 
bonds approved by the District Counsel; one in the amount of one-hundred percent 
(100%) of the Contract price Bid, to guarantee the faithful performance of the work 
and one-year warranties required under Section 13 of this Construction Agreement, 
and the other in the amount of one-hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price to 
guarantee payment of all claims for labor and materials furnished.  This Contract shall 
not become effective until such Bonds are supplied to and approved by the District.  
The amount of said Bonds shall be adjusted to include any increases in the value of 
the Contract Price and any time extensions granted under this Contract. 

SECTION 11 
INSURANCE 

Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Contractor shall procure and maintain 
for the duration of the contract, and for five (5) years thereafter, insurance against 
claims for injuries or death to persons or damages to property that may arise from, or 
in connection with, the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his 
agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors. 

Coverage – Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following: 

1. General Liability – Commercial General Liability (CGL) – Insurance Services 
Office (ISO) Commercial General Liability Coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 
01) including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily 
injury, personal and advertising injury with limit of at least five million dollars 
($5,000,000) per occurrence or the full per occurrence limits of the policies 
available, whichever is greater.  If a general aggregate limit applies, either the 
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (coverage 
as broad as the ISO CG 25 03, or ISO CG 25 04 endorsement provided to 

75



 

Valve Replacement Project 5 of 11 Construction Agreement 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

2. Automobile Liability – Insurance Services Office (ISO) Business Auto 
Coverage (Form CA 00 01), covering Symbol 1 (any auto) with limit of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage each accident. 

3. Workers' Compensation Insurance – The Contractor shall provide workers’ 
compensation coverage as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease.  Waiver of 
Subrogation (also known as Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to 
Us):  The Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation to obtain 
endorsement necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation in favor of the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, its directors, officers, 
employees, and authorized volunteers, for losses paid under the terms of this 
coverage which arise from work performed by the Named Insured for the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District; this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District has received a waiver of subrogation from the insurer. 

4. Contractor’s Pollution Liability – (optional: if project involves environmental 
hazards) with limits no less than five million dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence 
or claim, and ten million dollars ($10,000,000) policy aggregate. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums 
shown above, the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District requires, and 
shall be entitled to, the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the 
Contractor.  Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District. 

Other Required Provisions – The Commercial General Liability policy and Contractors 
Pollution (if necessary) are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following 
provisions: 

1. Additional Insured Status:  Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers are to be 
given insured status (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or, if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01, with 
respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of 
the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection 
with such work or operations.  General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance. 

2. Primary Coverage:  For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s 
insurance coverage shall be primary at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 

76



 

Valve Replacement Project 6 of 11 Construction Agreement 

as respects to the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, its 
directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers.  Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers shall be 
excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Contractor shall name the following entities as additional insured: 

Contractor shall name the City of [insert City if applicable], its directors, council 
members, officers, engineers, employees, and agents as additional insured on 
Contractor’s general liability insurance as described above. 

Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required above shall provide that 
coverage shall not be canceled, except with notice to the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District. 

Acceptability of Insurers – Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a current 
A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII or equivalent, or as otherwise approved by 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District. 

The Contractor agrees and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing 
work.  All of the insurance shall be provided on policy forms and through companies 
satisfactory to Channel Islands Beach Community Services District.  The Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District reserves the right to obtain complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including the policy declarations 
page with endorsement number.  Failure to continually satisfy the Insurance 
requirements is a material breach of contract. 

Responsibility for Work – Until the completion and final acceptance by Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District of all the work under and implied by this 
agreement, the work shall be under the Contractor’s responsible care and charge.  The 
Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and make good all injuries, damages, re-
erections, and repairs occasioned or rendered necessary by causes of any nature 
whatsoever. 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions – Insurance deductibles or self-insured 
retentions must be declared by the Contractor, and approved by the Channel Islands 
Beach Community Services District. At the election of Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District, the Contractor shall either cause the insurer to reduce or 
eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized 
volunteers or the Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District guaranteeing payment of losses 
and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.  The policy 
language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may 
be satisfied by either the named insured or the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District. 

77



 

Valve Replacement Project 7 of 11 Construction Agreement 

Verification of Coverage – Evidences of Insurance – Contractor shall furnish the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District with copies of certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this contract.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District before work commences.  However, failure 
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide them.  The Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including policy Declaration pages and Endorsement pages, 
required by these specifications, at any time. Failure to continually satisfy the 
Insurance requirements is a material breach of contract. 

Continuation of Coverage – The Contractor shall, upon demand of Channel Islands 
Beach Community Services District deliver evidence of coverage showing continuation 
of coverage for at least five (5) years after completion of the project.  Contractor further 
waives all rights of subrogation under this agreement.  When any of the required 
coverages expire during the term of this agreement, the Contractor shall deliver the 
renewal certificate(s) including the general liability additional insured endorsement and 
evidence of waiver of rights of subrogation against Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District (if builder’s risk insurance is applicable) to Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

Sub-Contractors – In the event that the Contractor employs other Contractors (sub-
contractors) as part of the work covered by this agreement, it shall be the Contractor’s 
responsibility to require and confirm that each sub-contractor meets the minimum 
insurance requirements specified above (via as broad as ISO CG 20 38 04 13).  The 
Contractor shall, upon demand of Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, 
deliver to Channel Islands Beach Community Services District copies such policy or 
policies of insurance and the receipts for payment of premiums thereon. 

SECTION 12 
RISK AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Indemnification and Agreement to Defend and Hold Harmless 

To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, its directors, officers, employees, 
and authorized agents from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs to defend arising out of the performance 
of the work described herein, and caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or 
omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them, or anyone whose acts any of them may be liable except where caused 
by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the Channel Islands 
Beach Community Services District, its directors, officers, employees and authorized 
agents. 

78



 

Valve Replacement Project 8 of 11 Construction Agreement 

SECTION 13 

WARRANTY 

The Contractor agrees to perform all work under this Contract in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

Contractor warrants to make, at its own expense, all repairs or replacements 
necessitated by defects in materials or workmanship, supplied under terms of this 
Contract, and pay for any damage to other works resulting from such defects, which 
become evident within one (1) year after the date of Final Acceptance of the work by 
the Board of Directors (and filing the Notice of Completion) as described in Section 
6.4 of the General Conditions or within such longer period of time as described in 
District Standard Specification 01 78 36 or within such longer period of time as may 
be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by 
the Contract Documents.  This warranty period shall apply to the entire Work 
completed under this Contract with the exception of those portions of Work occupied 
and used by the District pursuant to Section 6.2.3 of the General Conditions, Use Prior 
to Completion. 

Contractor further assumes responsibility for a guarantee for all work and materials 
provided by any subcontractor or manufacturers of packaged equipment components.  
The Contractor also agrees to hold the District harmless from liability of any kind 
arising from damage due to said defects.  The Contractor shall make all repairs and 
replacements promptly upon receipt of written demand for the same from the District.  
If the Contractor fails to make the repairs and replacements promptly, the District may 
do the work, and the Contractor and its labor and materials bond insurer per Section 
10 of the Construction Agreement shall be liable for the cost thereof. 

All repairs and replacements by the Contractor during the warranty period shall carry 
a one (1) year warranty on those items from the date the defective materials or 
workmanship was corrected.  District may, at its election, require extension of the 
material bond to cover the additional warranty period.  This obligation is in addition to 
any liability imposed by law and is not intended to waive any other rights the District 
may have. 

The Contractor’s warranty shall cover and include any work installed on property not 
owned by the District, whether public or private, and shall include the repair of damage 
to improvements and existing conditions on such other property caused by the 
settlement or otherwise resulting from the Contractor’s operations unless the owner 
of such other property shall in writing release the District from liability and 
responsibility for work or damage on such other property. 

As a precedent to final inspection, the Contractor shall deliver to the District all the 
manufacturers’ warranties for equipment, materials and machinery installed as 
required by the Contract, with the District named as a beneficiary.  In addition, for all 
equipment, materials and machinery bearing a manufacturer’s warranty that extends 

79



 

Valve Replacement Project 9 of 11 Construction Agreement 

for a longer period of time than the Contractor’s warranty, the Contractor shall secure 
and deliver the warranties to the District in the same manner and shall ensure that the 
District is named as a beneficiary. 

The Contractor's obligations under this clause are in addition to the Contractor's other 
express or implied assurances under this Contract or state law and in no way diminish 
any other basis of responsibility for faulty materials, equipment or work. 

SECTION 14 
SAFETY 

In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local statutory and regulatory requirements including, but not limited 
to California Department of Industrial Relations (Cal/OSHA) regulations; and the U.S. 
Department of Transportation Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act, related 
to their scope of work and operations.  In case of conflict in regulations, the most 
stringent shall apply.  The Contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and 
protective equipment and take any other needed actions necessary to protect the life 
and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property 
in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.  Safety 
precautions shall include, but shall not be limited to: adequate life protection and life-
saving equipment; adequate illumination; instructions in accident prevention for all 
employees, such as the use of machinery guards, safe walkways, scaffolds, ladders, 
bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, fall 
protection, and other safety devices; equipment and wearing apparel as are 
necessary, or lawfully required, to prevent accidents, injuries, or illnesses (including, 
but not limited to, exposure to the Coccidioides fungus and Valley Fever); and 
adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

Contractor must obtain all applicable Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(CAL-OSHA) permit(s) and others required by California Labor Code and California 
Government Code, prior to the initiation of any practices, work, method, operation, or 
process related to the work covered in the contract.  Permits required by governmental 
authorities will be obtained at Contractor’s expense. 

It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract 
which the Contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the Contractor, and any 
subcontractor, shall not permit any employee in performance of the contract to work 
in surroundings or under conditions that are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to 
his/her health or safety, as determined under Cal/OSHA health and safety standards. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for the safeguarding of all utilities.  At least two 
(2) working days before beginning work, the Contractor shall call the Underground 
Service Alert (USA) in order to determine the location of sub-structures.  The 
Contractor shall immediately notify Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District and the utility owner if he/she disturbs, disconnects, or damages any utility. 

80



 

Valve Replacement Project 10 of 11 Construction Agreement 

In accordance with Section 6705 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor shall 
submit to Channel Islands Beach Community Services District specific plans to show 
details of provisions for worker protection from caving ground during excavations of 
trenches of five feet (5’) or more in depth.  The excavation/trench safety plan shall be 
submitted to, and accepted by, Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
prior to starting excavation.  The trench safety plan shall have details showing the 
design of shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection 
from the hazard of caving ground.  If such a plan varies from the shoring system 
standards established by the Construction Safety Orders of the California Department 
of Industrial Relations (Cal/OSHA), the plan shall be prepared by a California 
registered civil, or structural, engineer.  As part of the plan, a note shall be included 
stating that the registered civil or structural engineer certifies that the plan complies 
with the Cal/OSHA Construction Safety Orders, or that the registered civil or structural 
engineer certifies that the plan is not less effective than the shoring, bracing, sloping 
or other provisions of the Safety Orders.  In no event shall the Contractor use a 
shoring, sloping, or protective system less effective than that required by said 
Construction Safety Orders.  Submission of this plan in no way relieves the Contractor 
of the requirement to maintain safety in all areas.  If excavations or trench work 
requiring a Cal/OSHA permit are to be undertaken, the Contractor shall submit his/her 
permit with the excavation/trench work safety plan to Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District before work begins. 

SECTION 15 
ASSIGNMENT 

No assignment by the Contractor of this Contract or any part hereof, or of funds to be 
received hereunder, will be recognized by the District unless such assignment has 
had prior written approval and consent of the District and the Surety. 

SECTION 16 
ATTORNEYS' FEES 

If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this 
Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and 
necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.  If 
any action is brought against the Contractor or any subcontractor to enforce a Stop 
Notice or Notice to Withhold, which names the District as a party to said action, the 
District shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and necessary 
disbursements arising out of the defense of such action by the District.  The District 
shall be entitled to deduct its costs for any Stop Notice filed, whether court action is 
involved or not. 

81



 

Valve Replacement Project 11 of 11 Construction Agreement 

SECTION 17 
COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, including by facsimile or electronic 
transmission, each of which so executed shall, irrespective of the date of its execution 
and delivery, be deemed an original, and all such counterparts together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

SECTION 18 
NOTICES 

Any notice required or permitted under this Contract may be given by ordinary mail at 
the address set forth below.  Any party whose address changes shall notify the other 
party in writing. 

TO DISTRICT: Street and Mailing Address: 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands Beach, CA  93035 

TO CONTRACTOR: [Contractor] 
[address] 
[city, state  zip] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the 
date first hereinabove written. 

CONTRACTOR:   

By   

Its   

Print Name   

Contractor's State License No.   

 

 

 

82



 

Valve Replacement Project 12 of 11 Construction Agreement 

DISTRICT: 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By   
General Manager 

83



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 3 Supplemental Agreement 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SUBSTITUTION OF 
SECURITIES FOR FUNDS WITHHELD 

PURSUANT TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT is made and entered into, to be effective, this 
 day of  , 2022, by and between: 
CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, (hereinafter 
referred to as "District"), AND   
 , (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"). 
The parties have heretofore entered into a contract dated  , 
for the construction of   
by the Contractor (hereinafter "Contract"), and this Supplemental Agreement shall be 
deemed part of said Contract as of the date hereof. 

This Supplemental Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to the provisions of 
California Public Contracts Code Section 22300.  Its purpose is to provide for the 
release to Contractor of funds that District would otherwise withhold from progress 
payments due to the Contractor. 

District and Contractor agree as follows: 

1. The funds that District has withheld or is to withhold from progress payments to 
Contractor under the terms of the Contract if the Contractor deposits with District 
or with a state or federally-chartered bank, as Escrow Agent, securities as 
described in California Government Code Section 16430, or certificates of deposit 
(hereinafter "CDs"), under the following conditions: 

A. Any CDs deposited with District or with an escrow agent must be issued by 
banks authorized to do business in California that have its accounts insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by Savings and Loan 
Associations authorized to transact business in California that have its 
accounts insured by the Savings Association Insurance Fund.  Securities or 
CDs shall be in bearer form or be unconditionally endorsed to District. 

B. District shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of this Supplemental 
Agreement, properly completed and executed by Contractor, and if applicable, 
accompanied by a fully executed Escrow Agreement satisfactory to District, to 
approve the Supplemental Agreement and Escrow Agreement and to 
determine the value of the securities and/or CDs to be deposited. 

84



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 3 Supplemental Agreement 

C. District shall release to Contractor, at the time of each progress payment, funds 
equivalent to the amount that would otherwise have been withheld therefrom 
("retention funds") until the total of the "retention funds" released equals the 
value, as established by District, of the securities and/or CDs then on deposit.  
In the event that District determines that the value of the securities and/or CDs 
is less than the sum of the "retention funds" that would have been withheld 
previously, together with the amounts that would otherwise be retained from 
the next progress payment, District shall so notify Contractor, and Contractor 
shall have five (5) days from the date of such notice to deposit additional 
securities and/or CDs so that the amounts on deposit equal or exceed the total 
"retention funds" previously withheld and to be withheld under the Contract.  
During said five-day period, no progress payments shall be made.  If Contractor 
deposits such additional securities and/or CDs, no funds shall be withheld from 
the next progress payment pursuant to the terms of this Supplemental 
Agreement.  If Contractor fails to deposit such additional securities and/or CDs, 
funds shall be withheld pursuant to the Contract. 

D. District may, at any time, sell or otherwise convert to cash such portions or all 
of the securities and/or CDs as in District's discretion may be necessary to 
cover any of the purposes set forth in the Contract relative to fulfillment of the 
Contract, and defaults by the Contractor, including but not limited to, 
termination of the Contractor's control over the work, stop notices field pursuant 
to law and assessment of liquidated damages.  The rights of District to the 
securities and/or CDs shall be superior to any other lien or claim of lien.  In 
addition, any Escrow Agreements entered into by Contractor pursuant to this 
Supplemental Agreement must provide for the conversion to cash upon 
District's demand, as described in this Subsection. 

E. Contractor shall pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees incurred by District, related to or arising out of this Supplemental 
Agreement or any Escrow Agreement, and Contractor shall also pay any 
expenses or penalties incurred in the conversion or sale of any securities 
and/or CDs. 

F. Except as otherwise provided, Contractor shall be the beneficial owner of the 
securities and/or CDs, and Contractor is entitled to any and all interest that may 
be paid thereon. 

85



 

Valve Replacement Project 3 of 3 Supplemental Agreement 

G. The securities and/or CDs on deposit, or any such portions or amounts 
therefrom remaining if any such securities and/or CDs have been converted to 
cash pursuant to Subsection 1D hereof, shall be released by District, or where 
applicable District shall notify Escrow that it may release said securities and/or 
CDs thirty-five (35) days from the date District files a Notice of Completion of 
the work. 

H. This Supplemental Agreement shall be governed by the terms of the Contract, 
which are incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth. 

I. This Agreement shall not be effective until District receives the written consent 
of Contractor's Surety under its faithful performance and payment bonds 
provided to District as part of the original construction contract. 

J. All notices regarding any provision of this Supplemental Agreement shall be in 
writing and mailed certified or registered and addressed as follows: 

TO DISTRICT: Street and Mailing Address: 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands Beach, CA  93035 

TO CONTRACTOR: 
  

  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Supplemental 
Agreement on the day and year first above written. 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
By:   

Pete Martinez, Acting General Manager 

  
(Contractor) 

By:   

Title:   

86



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 3 Performance Bond 

BOND NO.   

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, has awarded to 

  

 , (hereinafter designated as the “Principal”), 
a Contract for construction of: 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT  

Contract No.: CI 105; and 

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said Contract to 
furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, we,  , as 

Principal, and  , as Surety, are held and firmly 

bound unto the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (hereinafter 

called “Owner”), in the sum of  

DOLLARS ($ ) this amount being not less than one-
hundred percent (100%) of the total bid price of the Contract awarded by Owner to the 
Principal, lawful money of the United States of America, for payment of which sum 
well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.  In addition to the total sum 
of the Faithful Performance Bond provided above, Surety agrees to pay all reasonable 
attorneys’ fees incurred by Owner in any action to enforce Surety’s obligations under 
this Faithful Performance Bond. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, if the hereby 
bonded Principal, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in 
all things stand to and abide by and well and truly keep and perform all the 
undertakings, terms, covenants, conditions and agreements in the said Contract and 
any alteration thereof, made as therein provided, including, but not limited to, the 
provisions regarding Contract duration and liquidated damages, all within the time and 
in the manner therein designated in all respects according to their true intent and 
meaning, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and 
remain in full force and effect. 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the 
above obligation shall hold good for a period of one (1) year after the completion of 

87



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 3 Performance Bond 

the Work and its acceptance by Owner, during which time if Principal shall fail to make 
full, complete, and satisfactory repair and replacements and totally protect the Owner 
from loss or damage made evident during the period of one (1) year from the date of 
acceptance of the Work, and resulting from or caused by defective materials or faulty 
workmanship, the above obligation in penal sum thereof shall remain in full force and 
effect.  Notwithstanding anything in this paragraph to the contrary, the obligation of 
Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of Principal remains. 

FURTHER, the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees 
that no change, extension of time, alteration or modification of the Contract 
Documents, or of the work to be performed thereunder, shall in any way affect its 
obligations on this bond; and it does hereby waive notice of any change, extension of 
time, alteration or modification of the Contract Documents or of work to be performed 
thereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, 
each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly 
executed by the Principal and Surety named therein, on the   day of 
 , 2022, the name and corporate seal of each corporate 
party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned 
representative pursuant to authority of its governing body. 

(Name)   
 Principal 
(Seal) 

Name:   

Title:   

Signature:   
(Must be Notarized – Attach Original Acknowledgment) 

(Name)   
 Surety 
(Seal) 

Name:   

Title:   

Signature:   
(Must be Notarized – Attach Original Acknowledgment) 

88



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 2 Payment Bond 

BOND NO.   

PAYMENT BOND 
(Labor and Materials) 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, has awarded to 

  

 , (hereinafter designated as the “Principal”), 
a Contract for construction of: 

VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT  

Contract No.: CI 105; and 

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said Contract to 
furnish a bond for the payment of labor and materials, equipment or other supplies in 
connection with the performance of said Contract, 

NOW, THEREFORE, we,  , as 

Principal, and  , as Surety, are held and firmly 

bound unto the Channel Islands beach Community Services District (hereinafter called 

“Owner”), in the sum of    

DOLLARS($ ) this amount being not less than one-
hundred percent (100%) of the total bid price of the Contract awarded by Owner to the 
Principal), lawful money of the United States of America, for payment of which sum 
well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

If said Principal, or any subcontractor of said Principal, fails to pay for any 
materials, equipment, or other supplies, or for rental of same, used in connection with 
the performance of Work contracted to be done, or for amounts due under applicable 
State law for any work or labor thereon, or for amounts due under the Unemployment 
Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed under the Contract, or for any 
amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the State of California 
Employment Development Department pursuant to § 13020 of the Unemployment 
Insurance Code, said Surety will pay the same in the amount not exceeding the sum 
specified above, and, in the event suit is brought upon this bond, a reasonable 
attorney’s fee to be fixed by the court.  This bond is conditioned for the payment in full 
of the claims of all claimants and shall inure to the benefit of Owner and of any 
persons, companies or corporations, or their respective assigns, entitled to file claims 
under applicable State law, including, but not limited to, California Civil Code § 9100. 

89



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 2 Payment Bond 

PROVIDED, that no alterations in the work to be done or the materials to be 
furnished, or changes in the time of completion, which may be made pursuant to the 
terms of said Contract, shall in any way release either said Principal or said Surety 
thereunder, and no extensions of time granted under the provision of said Contract 
shall release either said Principal or said Surety, and notice of any non-material 
alterations or extension of the Contract is hereby waived by said Surety.  As used 
herein, the word “material” shall mean any change in excess of twenty percent (20%) 
of the Contract Price or Contract Time. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, 
each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly 
executed by the Principal and Surety named therein, on the   day of 
 , 2022, the name and corporate seal of each corporate 
party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned 
representative pursuant to authority of its governing body. 

(Name)   
 Principal 
(Seal) 

Name:   

Title:   

Signature:   
(Must be Notarized – Attach Original Acknowledgment) 

(Name)   
 Surety 
(Seal) 

Name:   

Title:   

Signature:   
(Must be Notarized – Attach Original Acknowledgment) 

90



 

 

PART 3 

CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 

91



 

Valve Replacement Project 1 of 30 General Conditions 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 

SECTIONS PAGE 

DEFINITIONS 3 

SECTION 1.  CONTRACT 7 

1.1 CONTRACT PROVISIONS 7 
1.2 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 7 
1.3 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 8 
1.4 OWNERSHIP OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, SHOP DRAWINGS 8 
1.5 INSURANCE 8 
1.6 BONDS 8 

SECTION 2.  DISTRICT 9 

2.1 ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 9 
2.2 ACCESS TO SITE 9 
2.3 ACCESS TO RECORDS 9 
2.4 OBSERVATION OF WORK 10 
2.5 RIGHT TO STOP WORK 10 
2.6 RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK 10 

SECTION 3.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 10 

3.1 SUPERVISION 10 
3.2 MATERIALS 11 

SECTION 4.  LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES 12 

4.1 COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW 12 
4.2 PERMITS AND LICENSES 12 
4.3 LABORERS AND SUBCONTRACTORS 12 
4.4 JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY 14 
4.5 PATENTS 14 

92



 

Valve Replacement Project 2 of 30 General Conditions 

4.6 PERSONAL LIABILITY 15 
4.7 TERMINATION 15 
4.8 PARTIAL INVALIDITY 15 
4.9 WAIVER OF RIGHTS 15 
4.10 TAXES 15 
4.11 WARRANTY OF TITLE 15 
4.12 LANDS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 16 

SECTION 5.  SCOPE OF WORK 16 

5.1 GENERAL 16 
5.2 INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 16 
5.3 CHANGE ORDERS 17 
5.4 PROTESTS 21 
5.5 PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING CLAIMS 22 

SECTION 6.  PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK 25 

6.1 PROGRESS OF WORK 25 
6.2 USE PRIOR TO FINAL COMPLETION 26 
6.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 27 
6.4 FINAL INSPECTION, FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE 28 

SECTION 7.  PAYMENT FOR WORK 28 

7.1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 28 
7.2 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 29 
7.3 FINAL ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT 29 
7.4 STOP NOTICES 29 
7.5 RELEASE OF CLAIMS 30 
7.6 RIGHT TO AUDIT 30 
7.7 ASSIGNMENT OF ANTI-TRUST CLAIMS 30 
7.8 BANKRUPTCY 30 

SECTION 8.  MISCELLANEOUS 30 

8.1 GOVERNING LAW 30 

93



 

Valve Replacement Project 3 of 30 General Conditions 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

DEFINITIONS 
The following capitalized terms are used in the General Conditions or other Contract Documents.  Their 
intent and meaning shall be as follows.  Certain other capitalized terms are included in this IFB and are 
defined within the Section of the document to which they refer to. 

Addenda/Addendum – means additional information not included in the original IFB which may 
contain additional specifications, provisions, standard forms or other information, especially pricing 
information. 

As-Builts – A copy of the Plans used by the Contractor to record changes to the Work as specified in 
the Contract Documents issued by District for the Project.  As-Builts shall be used to create Record 
Drawings. 

Bid – A form, or forms, completed in their entirety stating the Bidder’s offer to both furnish all materials 
and to perform all Work required under the Contract.  Bid may also be referred to as a Proposal. 

Bidder – Any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, joint venture, or other combination thereof 
submitting a Bid for Work contemplated.  A Bidder may act directly or through a duly authorized 
representative. 

Bid Bond – The cash, certified check or Bidder’s Surety bond executed by an admitted Surety insurer 
accompanying the Bid as a guaranty that the Bidder, if awarded a Contract, will enter into a Contract 
with District for the performance of the Work required under the Contracts Documents. 

Board of Directors (Board) – The Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District. 

Bond – Bid Bond, Faithful Performance Bond, or Payment Bond or other instrument of security. 

Business Days – District business days are Monday through Friday, 8 am to 4:30 pm or business 
hours as specified in related City, County or other agency permits required to perform Work. 

Change Order – A written order by the District’s ENGINEER, made bilaterally by District and Contractor 
or unilaterally by District, which covers alterations, changes, additions, or deletions to the Contract 
Documents or the Work in any manner which are necessary for the proper completion of the Work and 
which may result in adjustments to the Contract price, period of performance, or both. 

Claim – A written statement by the Contractor requesting additional time and/or money from District 
arising out of acts or omissions of District and/or differing conditions during the performance of the 
Contract which the Contractor could not have reasonably anticipated at the time of entering into the 
Contract, and which is submitted in response to District’s rejection of, or failure to approve, Contractor’s 
Request for Change, or otherwise issue a Change Order modifying the Contract, adjusting the Contract 
price and/or period of performance in a manner consistent with that which the Contractor believes is 
appropriate.  The Claim shall be submitted in the manner and in the time consistent with the 
requirements set forth in detail herein. 

Code – Codes of the State of California as well as any other federal or local law, statute, ordinance, 
rule or regulation. 

Consultant – Any consultant retained by District or its (sub)consultant(s) that provides design or 
construction phase services for support of this Project. 

94



 

Valve Replacement Project 4 of 30 General Conditions 

Contract / Contract Documents – The following documents constitute a part of and comprise the 
Contract/Contract Documents: Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form/Contractor’s Bid, 
the Construction Agreement, any Change Orders or addenda, General Conditions, Supplemental 
Conditions, Project Plans and Specifications, District Standard Specifications and Standard Plans (for 
Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Facilities), and/or Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Construction. 

Contractor – The individual, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other combination thereof, 
identified as such in the Contract, and referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in 
number and who directly Contracts with District.  The term “Contractor” means the Contractor or its 
authorized representative. 

Contract Price – The total amount of money for which the Contract is awarded, as modified by any 
Change Orders. 

Days – Unless otherwise specifically stated, the term “days” will be understood to mean consecutive 
calendar days. 

Drawings – See Plans. 

District – Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

ENGINEER – District’s Director of Engineering or his designee or District’s appointed representative 
for the Project. 

Extra Work – New or unforeseen work, or added work of a different character or function and for which 
no basis for payment is prescribed in the Contract Documents; or that involves revisions of the details 
of the Work in such manner as to render inequitable payment under items upon which the Contractor 
Bid in its Bid; or that work to be done under “stipulated prices” as given in the Schedule of Work Items 
in the Bid Form. 

Faithful Performance Bond – A bond required from the Contractor at the time of execution of a 
contract which guarantees faithful performance of the Contract by the Contractor. 

Field Order – Written notice by District to Contractor of immediate correction of the Work. 

Final Acceptance – Action taken by District Board of Directors accepting the Work as fully completed 
as evidenced by Board authorization to ENGINEER to file a Notice of Completion for the Project. 

Final Completion – Action taken by ENGINEER certifying that the Work is fully completed under the 
Contract Documents prior to District’s Final Acceptance of the Work. 

Final Inspection – ENGINEER will inspect Work for the purposes of ascertaining that the Work has 
been fully completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

General Conditions – Legal and contractual instructions to the Contractor setting forth both the 
Contractor and District responsibilities for business related activities pertaining to the contract.  The 
term “General Conditions” used in the Specifications shall be interpreted to refer to the General 
Conditions of the Contract Documents. 

General Manager – The individual designated by District as its Chief Executive Officer and agent. 

Inspector – The individual(s) designated by the District as the field project representative with 
delegated authority to enforce the requirements of the Contract Documents, subject to the approval of 
the General Manager. 

95



 

Valve Replacement Project 5 of 30 General Conditions 

Invitation to Bid – The following documents constitute the Invitation to Bid:  Also referred to as Contract 
Documents including the Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form/Contractor’s Bid, the 
Construction Agreement, any Change Orders or addenda, General Conditions, Supplemental General 
Conditions, Project Plans and Specifications, District Standard Specifications and Standard Plans (for 
Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Facilities), and/or Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Construction. 

Law – Any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or code. 

Liquidated Damages – The amount the Contractor shall pay to District, as determined by rates and 
amounts as fixed and agreed in the Contract Documents, due to the Contractor’s failure to complete 
the Work as scheduled or to submit and/or update the schedule within the time specified, or for non-
compliance with other specified requirements. 

Notice Inviting Bids – A public notice fixing the date and location for the receipt of Bids that is part of 
the IFB/Contract Documents. 

Notice to Proceed – A written notice given by District to the Contractor fixing the date on which the 
time for performance under the Contract will commence. 

Or Equal – Any product, equipment, material, supply, or service which is proposed by the Contractor 
for use in the Work, which is equal to or better than, and is as suitable as the product, material, 
equipment, supply or service specified in the Contract Documents as to function, performance, 
reliability, quality, and general configuration. 

Owner – Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

Payment Bond – A bond required from a Contractor to secure payment to Subcontractors, laborers, 
mechanics and Suppliers employed on the Work of the Contract. 

Plans – The part of the Contract Documents consisting of the illustrative plans, profiles, typical and 
general cross-sections, working drawings, or exact reproductions thereof, which show the location, 
character, dimensions and details of the Work to be done.  Refers to all plans relating to the Project 
including Project Plans and Specifications which are prepared specifically for the Project and the 
District’s Standard Specifications and Standard Plans for Water Sewer, Recycled Water Facilities. 

Plans and Specifications – Refers to all plans and specifications relating to the Project including 
Project Plans and Specifications which are prepared specifically for the Project and the District’s 
Standard Specifications and Standard Plans for Water, Sewer, Recycled Water Facilities, and/or 
Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction. 

Project(s) – The entire scope of Work covered by all Contract Documents. 

Project Plans and Specifications – Refers to plans, specifications and technical requirements 
prepared specifically for the Project that are either different than, more stringent than, or are not 
addressed in, the District’s Standard Specifications and Standard Plans for Water, Sewer, and 
Recycled Facilities, and/or Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction. 

Proposal – A standard form supplied by District, which when completed in its entirety and executed, 
shall constitute a Bid from Contractor. 

Record Drawings – Construction drawings from completed past projects maintained by District as a 
record of how facilities were actually constructed.  These are generally created from the original Plans, 
addendum and Change Order drawings, and the Contractor’s As-Built copy of the construction plans. 

96



 

Valve Replacement Project 6 of 30 General Conditions 

Schedule of Work Items – A list of Bid item(s) included in the Bid Form submitted by Contractor 
including the approximate quantities, item descriptions, total price per item, and total amount of Bid. 

Specifications – Elements of the Contract Documents which describe in writing the commercial and 
technical requirements and technical specifications necessary to construct the Project.  Refers to all 
specifications related to the Project including the Project Plans and Specifications, Standard 
Specifications and Standard Plans for Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Facilities, and/or Greenbook 
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction. 

Subcontractor – One who is licensed pursuant to California Business and Professions Code, Section 
7000 et. seq., and who Contracts directly with the prime Contractor or with another Subcontractor to 
perform some part of the Work.  A Subcontractor does not have any direct contract with District related 
to the Work. 

Supplemental Agreements – Written agreements between District and the Contractor, covering 
schedules, drawings, instructions, alterations, amendments and extensions to the Contract including 
addenda and Change Orders. 

Supplier – An individual, organization, or firm who is not required for the purposes of the Work to be 
licensed pursuant to California Business and Professions Code as a Contractor or Subcontractor, within 
the meanings of those terms as defined herein above, who provides equipment and/or materials for the 
Work to the Contractor or a Subcontractor, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does 
not perform labor at the site except for labor or labor supervision required by some manufacturers as 
part of their equipment installation for warranty or other purposes or for operation of rented equipment, 
and only to the extent such labor or labor supervision is exempted from licensing requirements under 
the California Business and Professions Code, including but not limited to Section 7040 et seq.  The 
term “Supplier” also includes fabricator, manufacturer, or vendor. 

Surety or Sureties – The bondsmen or party or parties who guarantee the fulfillment of the Contract, 
or a portion of the Contract including payments issued by Contractor, by bond and whose signatures 
are affixed to the bond. 

Terms – The terms “Approved”, “Directed”, “Satisfactory”, “Accepted”, “Acceptable”, “Proper”, 
“Required, “Necessary”, and “Or Equal” mean as approved, directed, satisfactory, accepted, 
acceptable, proper, required, necessary, and Or Equal, in the opinion of the ENGINEER. 

Unit Price – The amount stated in the Contractor’s Bid for a single unit of an element of the Work. 

Work – All the Work specified in the Contract Documents necessary to complete the requirements of 
the Contract, including the furnishing of all labor and materials.  Also, the completed construction or 
parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents, including all materials, equipment, 
and supplies incorporated or to be incorporated in the construction. 

Work Days – Work Days include the District’s Business Days and excludes Saturday, Sunday, and 
National Holidays. 

97



 

Valve Replacement Project 7 of 30 General Conditions 

SECTION 1. CONTRACT 

1.1 CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1.1.1 The Contract Documents, as defined above, form the Contract between the District and 
the Contractor.  The Contract represents the entire integrated agreement between the parties and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral.  These 
General Conditions are a part of the Contract Documents.  The Contract may be amended or 
modified only as set forth in the Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents shall not be 
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind between the District and any other 
Contractor or subcontractor or Supplier of any tier other than the District and Contractor. 

1.1.2 Contractor acknowledges that it has read every clause in the Contract Documents, has 
examined the location where the Work is to be done; has made all inquiries and investigations 
necessary to enable it to understand thoroughly the intent of all parts of the Contract Documents, 
and the nature of the Work; and agrees that it will not make any claim for compensation, extension 
of time or other allowance of any sort, based upon or arising out of any alleged misunderstanding 
by it of any part of the Contract Documents. 

1.1.3 Contractor shall, for the price Bid, furnish all supervision, labor, materials, transportation 
and equipment necessary to execute the Work in every respect in a thorough, skillful, workmanlike 
manner in accordance with the Contract Documents and to the satisfaction of the District.  All work 
shall, during its progress and until its completion, conform to the lines, elevations and grades shown 
on said plans and profiles. 

1.1.4 Whenever a reference is made to any portion of this Contract or any other applicable law 
or ordinance, the reference applies to all existing and future amendments and additions. 

1.1.5 The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by one shall be as 
binding as if called for by all.  The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all work necessary 
for the completion of the Contract.  The Contractor shall perform all work in conformance to the 
Contract Documents unless otherwise directed in writing by the ENGINEER per the General 
Conditions, Section 5.3 – Change Orders. 

1.2 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

If there is a conflict between any of the documents referenced in or required under this Contract, the 
order of precedence in controlling the Work shall be: 

1. Permits from outside agencies required by law and applicable codes or laws 

2. Change Orders 

3. Addenda 

4. Construction Agreement 

5. Supplemental Conditions 

6. Project Plans and Specifications 

7. General Conditions 

8. District’s Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings (for Water, Sewer, and Recycled 
Water Facilities) 

98



 

Valve Replacement Project 8 of 30 General Conditions 

9. Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (most recent edition and 
supplements adopted as of the date of the advertisement of the bid) 

Any combination of the Contract and other of above mentioned documents may be provided to 
Contractor as Contract Documents. 

1.3 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

1.3.1 All sections of the Specifications shall be read and interpreted as constituting a whole and 
whatever is specified in one section shall be construed as applying to all sections. 

1.3.2 The division of the Specifications into a number of sections, paragraphs, or articles is for 
convenience only, and no other construction or interpretations shall be made.  In this respect, no 
section of the Specifications is written for an individualized trade, occupation or profession. 

1.3.3 The Plans, together with the Specifications, will govern the Work to be done.  Anything 
mentioned in these Specifications and not shown on the Plans, or shown on the Plans and not 
mentioned in these Specifications, shall be of like effect as though shown or mentioned in both.  
The Contractor shall perform all activities at no extra cost to the District that are reasonably inferable 
from the Contract Documents as being necessary to produce and/or achieve the intended results. 

1.3.4 The District may furnish from time to time such plans, detail, profiles and information as 
may be considered necessary for the Contractor's guidance or clarification in addition to those 
provided in the Contract Documents and shall become a portion of the Plans and Specifications.  
In cases where the Work or any portion thereof is to be performed in accordance with drawings, 
specifications or lists of data submitted by the Contractor and approved by the District, such 
approved drawings, submittals, etc., shall become portions of the Plans and Specifications 
regarding the specific matters to which such approval applies.  The Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for the correctness of the measurements and other essential information submitted by 
it and for the correlation of the various portions and features of the Work which are or may be 
affected by such measurements and information. 

1.3.5 Any change required by the District in the drawings, submittals, etc., submitted for approval 
by the Contractor, shall be considered as necessary in order to comply with the requirements of 
the Plans and Specifications, and shall not be the basis of any claim for extra compensation over 
and above the Bid price for the Work, except where changes involving Extra Work are expressly 
authorized and ordered in accordance with the section of the Contract Documents relating to 
Change Orders. 

1.3.6 A copy of the Plans and Specifications shall be kept upon the Work site at all times during 
its progress and access shall at all times be accorded the ENGINEER. 

1.4 OWNERSHIP OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, SHOP DRAWINGS.  The Contract Documents 
including shop drawings and submittals were prepared for the Work of this Contract only and are the 
sole property of the District.  No part of the Contract Documents shall be used by the Contractor for any 
other construction or for any other purpose except with the written consent of the District.  Any 
unauthorized use of the Contract Documents is at the sole risk and liability of the user. 

1.5 INSURANCE.  The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance, in amounts equal to the 
requirements in the form and manner provided for in Section 11 of the Construction Agreement. 

1.6 BONDS.  The Contractor shall purchase and maintain Bonds, in amounts equal to the 
requirements in the form and manner provided for in Section 10 of the Construction Agreement and 
Sections 21, 22, and 23 of the Instructions to Bidders. 

99



 

Valve Replacement Project 9 of 30 General Conditions 

SECTION 2. DISTRICT 

2.1 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT 

2.1.1 The District will administer the Contract, unless notice is given to the Contractor that a 
Construction Manager or like entity has been retained to administer the Contract. 

2.1.2 The ENGINEER shall serve as the agent of District and will observe the accomplishment 
of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.  The ENGINEER will decide any and 
all questions which may arise as to the interpretations of the Contract Documents, as to the quality 
and acceptability of materials furnished and Work performed, as to the manner of performance, 
and as to the rate of progress of the Work.  All questions as to the acceptable performance of the 
Contract on the part of the Contractor shall be decided by the ENGINEER. 

2.1.3 All instructions, rulings, and decisions of the ENGINEER shall be in writing, and shall be 
final and binding on the Contractor unless formal written objection is made as specified herein. 

2.1.4 It is expressly agreed that the ENGINEER shall not have the power to waive any of the 
obligations of the Contract Documents for the furnishing by the Contractor of good and suitable 
material, and for performing the Work as herein described.  Failure or omission on the part of the 
ENGINEER to reject defective or inferior work or materials, or the Engineer’s release of the 
Contractor from obligations to remedy the defective or inferior work, shall not imply acceptance of 
the Work.  Upon discovery of said defective work, the Contractor shall immediately tear out, 
remove, and properly replace the defective work without additional compensation.  Neither shall 
such failure or omission, nor any acceptance by the ENGINEER, or by the Board be construed as 
relieving the responsibilities of the Contractor or its sureties, for a sum of money as may be needed 
to remove and replace, or to repair, any or all work or materials which is found to be defective or 
inferior.  In such instance, in lieu of the recovery of said sum of money, the ENGINEER may permit 
the Contractor to perform, at the Contractor’s own expense, the work of removing and replacing or 
repairing work or materials found to be defective or inferior. 

2.1.5 If, in the opinion of the ENGINEER, Work is not being done in accordance with any 
applicable codes or laws or any portion of the Contract Documents, written notice as provided in 
Section 18 of the Construction Agreement shall be given to the Contractor or its authorized agent.  
Written notice to any foreman or agent in charge of any portion of the Work in the absence of the 
Contractor shall be considered as notice to the Contractor. 

2.1.6 If in the judgment of the ENGINEER, it is undesirable or impracticable to replace any 
defective or nonconforming Work, the compensation to be paid to the Contractor shall be reduced 
by Change Order by such amount as in the judgment of the District shall deem equitable. 

2.2 ACCESS TO SITE.  The ENGINEER and other District officers, employees and agents, shall 
at all times have reasonable access to the jobsite and the Work.  The Contractor shall be responsible 
for the safety of the District’s representatives while at the job site.  The ENGINEER and other District 
officers, employees, and agents shall at all times have reasonable access to all places of manufacture 
where materials are being manufactured, produced, or fabricated for use under this Contract. 

2.3 ACCESS TO RECORDS.  The ENGINEER and other District officers, employees, and agents, 
shall have reasonable access during normal business hours to Contractor’s records such as payrolls, 
vouchers, purchase orders, etc. as the District may deem appropriate to monitor compliance with the 
Contract Documents. 

100



 

Valve Replacement Project 10 of 30 General Conditions 

2.4 OBSERVATION OF THE WORK 

2.4.1 Inspectors employed by or on behalf of the District shall be authorized to observe all work 
done and all materials furnished.  Such observation may extend to all or any part of the Work and 
to the preparation, fabrication or manufacture of the materials to be used.  The Inspector is not 
authorized to revoke, alter or waive any requirements of the Contract Documents.  The Inspector 
is authorized to call to the attention of the Contractor any failure of the Work or materials to conform 
to the Contract Documents.  Inspector shall have the authority to reject materials or suspend the 
Work until any questions at issue can be referred to and decided by the ENGINEER. 

2.4.2 The Inspector shall, in no case, act as foreman or perform other duties for the Contractor, 
nor interfere with the management of the Work by the latter.  Any advice that the Inspector may 
give the Contractor shall not be construed as binding to the ENGINEER or in any way as releasing 
the Contractor from fulfilling all the terms of the Contract. 

2.4.3 ENGINEER’S observation of a method of procedure, process or system of operations of 
the Contractor, or failure of the ENGINEER to warn the Contractor that the method or methods of 
construction adopted by it are hazardous to persons or to property, shall not relieve the Contractor 
of its obligations hereunder, including the obligations of indemnification of the District, nor give rise 
to any claims against the District. 

2.5 RIGHT TO STOP WORK.  If the Contractor fails to correct Work which is not in accordance 
with the Contract Documents or for any cause whatsoever, the District may order the Contractor to stop 
the Work, or any portion of the Work, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the 
District’s right to exercise this provision shall not be for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person 
or entity.  If the District stops the Work because of conduct by the Contractor, its agents, representatives 
or subcontractors, no compensation in time or money shall be owed to the Contractor for such 
stoppage. 

2.6 RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK.  If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within ten (10) days or within the time specified, 
whichever is less, after receipt of written notice from the District to commence and continue correction 
of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the District may by any means acceptable to 
it, without prejudice to other remedies the District may have, correct such deficiencies.  In such case 
an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from payments then or thereafter due the 
Contractor the cost or estimated cost of correcting such deficiencies, including compensation for 
additional services and expenses made necessary by such default, neglect or failure.  If payments then 
or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor and/or its 
Surety shall pay the difference to the District. 

SECTION 3. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1 SUPERVISION 

3.1.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using its best skill and attention, and 
shall determine, subject to applicable law, the means and methods to be implemented.  The 
Contractor is at all times responsible for the Work site until Final Acceptance of the Project.  The 
Contractor shall at all times during the performance of the Contract prosecute the Work with such 
labor and equipment as, in the opinion of the ENGINEER, are appropriate to complete the different 
portions of the Work in the order required and within the specified time, and to secure a satisfactory 
quality of Work. 

3.1.2 Representation on Work site.  The Contractor shall at all times, while the Work is in 
progress, be represented at the Work site in person, or by superintendents, foremen, managers, 
or other duly designated and authorized representatives or agents.  The work of such 

101



 

Valve Replacement Project 11 of 30 General Conditions 

representatives shall be limited to supervisory duties only.  The Contractor shall not designate a 
subcontractor as its representative.  In the event the Contractor’s representative's authority is 
limited in any way, the Contractor shall notify the District within ten (10) days after entering into the 
Contract of such limitation. 

3.1.3 Contractor’s Representative.  When a Contractor cannot be in person on the Work site 
during its progress, it shall designate in writing to the ENGINEER the name of its authorized 
representative in charge of the Work.  When a Contractor consists of a multiple entity such as, but 
not limited to, two or more persons, partnerships, corporations, firms or other entities, such 
Contractor shall designate in writing to the ENGINEER the name of the authorized representative 
in charge of the Work and the Work site. 

3.2 MATERIALS 

3.2.1 All materials shall be new and of the specified quality and fully equal to samples, where 
samples are required or requested.  The Contractor shall furnish to the ENGINEER for review or 
test, whenever requested and free of charge, samples of all materials proposed to be used in the 
Work.  It shall also submit any required detailed drawings of articles or equipment for District 
approval.  Rejected materials must be immediately removed from the Work site and shall not be 
brought again upon the Work site or used in the Work. 

3.2.2 Except for District-selected equipment items and items where “no substitution” is clearly 
specified; materials, articles, devices, products, fixtures, form, type of construction, or process are 
indicated or specified for the purpose of establishing a standard of quality and facilitating the 
description of the material or process desired by District.  This procedure is not to be construed as 
eliminating from competition other products of equal or better quality by other manufacturers where 
fully suitable in design, and shall be deemed to be followed by the words “Or Equal”.  Such requests 
shall be made in writing by the Contractor to the District stating in detail how the proposed product 
differs in composition and performance from the designated product and shall be accompanied by 
complete data on which the District may make a determination on the merits of the proposed 
substitution. 

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 3400, Contractor may, in such cases, submit requests 
substantiating the substitution of “equal” items within thirty-five (35) days after the award of the Contract 
unless otherwise stated in the Supplemental Conditions or Project Plans and Specifications.  If the 
District rejects the substitution of an “Or Equal” item, the Contractor shall provide the specified item 
without extra cost to the District. 

3.2.3 Contractor shall be responsible for the materials including proper storage and handling 
from the time it receives materials until Final Acceptance of the Work and Contractor shall replace 
or repair, at its own cost in a manner satisfactory to ENGINEER, any of the materials which are lost 
or damaged after the Contractor’s receipt of same. 

3.2.4 Materials furnished by District.  In cases where the District furnishes all or a portion of the 
equipment or materials to be used in the Work ("materials"), the Contractor shall accept delivery of 
such materials as may be provided.  If the Contractor is required to haul such materials under this 
Contract to the Work site, it shall pick them up promptly after notification by the ENGINEER, and 
shall pay at its own cost any demurrage or other charges which have accrued due to its failure to 
pick up the materials promptly. 

3.2.5 Any District furnished materials which remain unused at the completion of the Work shall 
be delivered by the Contractor to the District storage yard designated by the ENGINEER. 

102



 

Valve Replacement Project 12 of 30 General Conditions 

3.2.6 All compensation to be received by the Contractor for handling and protecting District 
furnished material is included in the Contract Price, and no extra compensation will be paid to the 
Contractor for complying with the provisions of this section. 

SECTION 4. LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW.  The Contractor shall, at its own cost and expense, observe 
and keep fully informed regarding all existing and future federal, state, city, county, local agency or 
special District laws and regulations which may in any manner affect those engaged or employed on 
the Project, or the materials to be used or furnished, or which may in any respect govern, control or 
otherwise affect the Project or the conduct of the Work or any part thereof.  The Contractor shall, at its 
own cost and expense, furnish all materials and facilities required to comply with such laws and 
regulations.  The Contractor shall furnish copies of all valid licenses and certifications required of 
Suppliers, subcontractors, or employees for the Work upon the request of the ENGINEER. 

4.2 PERMITS AND LICENSES.  The Contractor shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all 
charges and fees, and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of 
the work. 

4.3 LABORERS AND SUBCONTRACTORS 

4.3.1 SKILLED WORKERS.  Only skilled and properly licensed and/or certified workers shall be 
employed on work requiring special qualification.  When required in writing by the District, the 
Contractor or any subcontractor shall discharge any person who is, in the opinion of the District, 
incompetent, unfaithful, disorderly or otherwise not qualified, and shall not again employ such 
discharged person on the Work except with the consent of the District.  This includes, but is not 
limited to the discharge or discipline of any employee of the Contractor or its subcontractors or 
agents who harass or otherwise engage in inappropriate behavior towards District personnel or the 
public or other workers.  Such discharge shall not be the basis of any claim for compensation or 
damages from the Contractor to the District. 

4.3.2 DAVIS-BACON ACT.  Contractor will pay and will require all subcontractors to pay all 
employees on said Project a salary or wage at least equal to the prevailing rate of per diem wages 
as determined by the Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act for each craft or 
type of worker needed to perform the Contract.  The provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act shall apply 
only if the Contract is in excess of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) or when twenty-five percent 
(25%) or more of the Contract is funded by federal assistance.  If the aforesaid conditions are met, 
a copy of the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act to be complied with are incorporated herein as a 
part of this Contract and referred to by reference. 

4.3.3 GENERAL PREVAILING RATE.  District has ascertained from the State of California 
Director of Industrial Relations, the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general 
prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed 
for each craft or type of work needed to execute this Contract, and copies of the same are on file 
in the Office of the ENGINEER of District.  The Contractor agrees that no less than said prevailing 
rates shall be paid to workers employed on this public works contract as required by Labor Code 
Section 1774 of the State of California. 

4.3.4 DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL REGULATIONS.  Contractor must comply with the 
requirements set forth in California Senate Bill (SB) 854 (Ch. 28, 2014).  SB 854’s requirements 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

4.3.4.1 No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works 
project (submitted on or after March 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department of Industrial 

103



 

Valve Replacement Project 13 of 30 General Conditions 

Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this requirement 
for bid purposes only under Labor Code section 1771.1(a)]. 

4.3.4.2 No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public 
works project (awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. 

4.3.4.3 This Project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department 
of Industrial Relations. 

4.3.4.4 The Contractor must post job site notices prescribed by regulation. 

4.3.4.5 The Contractor must submit a certified payroll records at least monthly to the Labor 
Commissioner in a format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. 

4.3.5 FORFEITURE FOR VIOLATION.  Contractor shall, as penalty to the District, forfeit Two 
Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid (either by 
it or any subcontractor under it), less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages as set by the 
Director of Industrial Relations, in accordance with Section 1770 of the Labor Code for the work 
provided for in this Contract, all in accordance with Section 1775 of the Labor Code of the State of 
California. 

4.3.6 APPRENTICES.  Section 1777.5 of the Labor Code of the State of California, regarding 
the employment of apprentices is applicable to this Contract if the prime contract involves Thirty 
Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) or more. 

4.3.7 WORKDAY.  In the performance of this Contract, not more than eight (8) hours shall 
constitute a day's work, and Contractor shall not require more than eight (8) hours of labor in a day 
from any person employed by him hereunder except as provided in Section 4.3.2 and 4.3.3 above.  
Contractor shall conform to Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7 (Sections 1810 et seq. and including Section 
1815) of the Labor Code of the State of California and shall forfeit to the District as a penalty, the 
sum of Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) for each worker employed in the execution of this Contract by 
Contractor or any subcontractor for each calendar day during which any worker is required or 
permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours in any one (1) calendar day and forty (40) hours in any 
one (1) week in violation of said Article.  Contractor shall keep an accurate record showing the 
name and actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each worker 
employed by Contractor in connection with the Project. 

4.3.8 EMPLOYER PAYMENTS.  Per diem wages shall be deemed to include, per Labor Code 
Section 1773.1, travel and subsistence among other employer payments. 

4.3.9 RECORD OF WAGES; INSPECTION.  Contractor agrees to maintain accurate payroll 
records showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight-time and 
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each 
journeyman, apprentice, worker or other employee employed by it in connection with the Project 
and agrees to require that each of its subcontractors does the same.  The applicable Contractor or 
subcontractor or its agent having authority over such matters shall certify all payroll records as 
accurate.  Contractor further agrees that its payroll records and those of its subcontractors shall be 
available to the employee or his representative, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and 
the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, and shall comply with all of the provisions of Labor Code 
Section 1776, in general. 

4.3.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT.  Projects under this Contract will obligate the 
Contractor and Subcontractors not to discriminate in employment practices.  Bidders must, if 
requested, submit a compliance report concerning their employment practices and policies in order 

104



 

Valve Replacement Project 14 of 30 General Conditions 

to maintain their eligibility to receive the award of Contract.  The Contractor must be prepared to 
comply in all respects with the requirements regarding nondiscrimination including but not limited 
to California Labor Code Section 1735. 

4.3.11 SUBCONTRACTORS 

4.3.11.1 The Contractor shall perform not less than the percentage of the Work specified by 
the Contract Documents using the Contractor’s own employees.  At all times throughout the 
course of the Project, all subcontractors shall be licensed as required by California law.  
Contractor is responsible for the performance of all work done by each Subcontractor.  The 
District reserves the right to require discharge or replacement of a Subcontractor that is not 
qualified to perform the work or violates any provision of the Contract Documents.  The contract 
between the Contractor and Subcontractor shall include a copy of Labor Code Sections 1771, 
1775, 1776, 1777.5, 1813 and 1815.  The Contractor shall comply with the Subletting and 
Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Public Contract Code § 4100 et seq.). 

4.3.11.2 The Contractor agrees to be fully responsible to the District for the acts and 
omissions of any Subcontractor, and for the acts and omissions of persons directly or indirectly 
employed by the Contractor.  Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall create any 
contractual relation between any Subcontractor and the District. 

4.3.11.3 The Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be 
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract 
Documents and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which 
the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the District.  Each subcontract 
agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the District under the Contract Documents 
with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting will not 
prejudice such rights.  Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to 
enter into similar agreements with its subcontractors. 

4.3.12 CONTRACTING AND ASSIGNMENT.  Subcontractors not specifically listed in the Bid 
proposal will not be recognized as such and will not be allowed to work on the Project unless the 
value of said Work is less than one-half of one percent (½%) of the total Contract Price.  All persons 
engaged in the Work of construction will be considered as employees of the Contractor, and not as 
independent Contractors.  No assignment of any portion of the Work or of any obligation or duty 
under the Contract is permitted without the express prior written consent of District, and as 
otherwise authorized by the Contract Documents. 

4.4 JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY.  If the Contractor is a joint venture or partnership, each 
venturer or partner shall be jointly and severally liable for any and all of the duties and obligations of 
the Contractor that are assumed under or arise out of the Contract.  Each of such venturers or partners 
waives notice of the breach or non-performance of any undertaking or obligation of the Contractor 
contained in, resulting from or assumed under the Contract, and the failure to give any such notice shall 
not affect or impair such venturer’s or partner’s joint and several liability hereunder. 

4.5 PATENTS.  The Contractor shall assume all costs arising from the use of any patented article, 
material, device, equipment, product design or process used or furnished by the Contractor in 
connection with, or incorporated in, the Work to be done.  The Contractor shall be responsible for and 
indemnify and defend and hold harmless District, its Subcontractors, the ENGINEER, the Consultant, 
if any, and each of their directors, officers, engineers, employees and agents from all damages, costs 
and expenses (including attorney’s fees, expert witness fees, court costs, and other costs and expenses 
of, litigation) that may, at any time arise or be set up by reason of any infringement or alleged 
infringement of any patent rights as a consequence of the installation or use of any such article, 
material, device, equipment or process in or about any Work under the Contract Documents.  The 
Contractor’s bond for faithful performance shall be deemed to apply expressly to this provision of these 
General Conditions. 

105



 

Valve Replacement Project 15 of 30 General Conditions 

4.6 PERSONAL LIABILITY.  No director, officer, engineer, employee, or agent of District, its 
Consultant, or its ENGINEER shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue 
of the Contract. 

4.7 TERMINATION. 

4.7.1 This Contract may be terminated in whole or in part in writing by either party in the event 
of substantial failure by the other party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault 
of the terminating party, provided that no termination may be effected unless the other party is 
given:  (1) not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice (delivered by certified mail, return 
receipt requested) of intent to terminate, and (2) an opportunity for consultation with the terminating 
party prior to termination. 

4.7.2 This Contract may be terminated in whole or in part in writing by the District for its 
convenience, provided that the Contractor is given (1) not less than ten (10) calendar days’ notice 
(delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested) of the intent to terminate, and (2) an 
opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

4.7.3 If termination for default or convenience is effected by the District, an equitable adjustment 
in the price provided for in this Contract shall be made, but (1) no amount shall be allowed for 
anticipated profit on unperformed services or other work, and (2) any payment due to the Contractor 
at the time of termination may be adjusted to cover any additional costs to the District because of 
the Contractor's default.  If the Contractor effects termination for default, the equitable adjustment 
shall include a reasonable profit for services or other work performed, but no adjustment will be 
allowed for anticipated profits.  The equitable adjustment for any termination shall provide for 
payment to the Contractor for services rendered and expenses incurred prior to the termination, in 
addition to termination settlement costs reasonably incurred by the Contractor relating to 
commitments that had become firm prior to the termination. 

4.7.4 Upon receipt of a termination action under Sections 4.7.1 or 4.7.2 above, the Contractor 
shall (1) promptly discontinue all affected work (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver 
or otherwise make available to the District all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, 
summaries and such other information and materials as may have been accumulated by the 
Contractor in performing this Contract whether completed or in process. 

4.7.5 Upon termination under Sections 4.7.1 or 4.7.2 above, the District may take over the work 
and may award another party an agreement to complete the work under this Contract. 

4.8 PARTIAL INVALIDITY.  In the event any article, section, sub article, Sections, sentence, 
clause, or phrase (collectively referred to hereinafter as “Contract Elements” or singularly as “Contract 
element”) contained in the Contract Documents shall be determined, declared, or adjudged invalid, 
illegal, unconstitutional, or otherwise unenforceable, such determination, declaration, or adjudication 
shall in no manner affect the other Contract Elements, which shall remain in full force and effect as if 
the Contract element declared, determined, or adjudged invalid, illegal, unconstitutional, or otherwise 
unenforceable, was not originally contained in the Contract Documents. 

4.9 WAIVER OF RIGHTS.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents, 
no action or failure to act by District, Consultant, ENGINEER, Contractor or its Subcontractor shall 
constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract Documents, nor shall 
any such actions or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder. 

4.10 TAXES.  The Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other taxes. 

4.11 WARRANTY OF TITLE.  No materials, supplies, or equipment for the Work under this Contract 
shall be purchased subject to a chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other 

106



 

Valve Replacement Project 16 of 30 General Conditions 

agreement by which an interest therein or any part thereof is retained by the seller or Supplier.  The 
Contractor warrants clear and good title to all materials, supplies, and equipment installed and 
incorporated in the Work and agrees upon completion of the Work to deliver the premises together with 
all improvements and appurtenances constructed or placed thereon by Contractor to District free from 
any claims liens, encumbrances or charges and further agrees that neither he nor any person, firm or 
corporation furnishing any material or labor for any work covered by the Contract shall have any right 
to a lien upon the premises or any improvement or appurtenance thereon, provided that this shall not 
preclude the Contractor from installing metering devises or other equipment of utility companies or of 
municipalities, the title of which is commonly retained by the utility company or the municipality.  Nothing 
contained in this article, however, shall defeat or impair the right of such persons furnishing materials 
or labor under any bond given by the Contractor for its protection, or any right under any law permitting 
such persons to look to funds due the Contractor in the hands of the District.  The provisions of this 
section shall be inserted in all subcontracts and materials contracts, and notices of its provisions shall 
be given to all persons furnishing materials for the Work when no formal contract is entered into for 
such materials. 

4.12 LANDS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  The lands and rights-of-way for the facility to be constructed 
will be provided by District.  The Contractor shall make its own arrangements and pay all expenses for 
additional area required outside the limits of District’s land and rights-of-way. 

Work in public right-of-way shall be done in accordance with the requirements of the permit issued by 
the public agency in whose right-of-way the Work is located in addition to conforming to the Contract 
Documents.  If a project-specific permit is not required, the Work shall conform to the standards of the 
public agency that has jurisdiction over the area where work is performed in addition to conforming to 
the Contract Documents. 

SECTION 5. SCOPE OF WORK 

5.1 GENERAL.  Contractor shall complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents 
and by the completion date set within the Contract Documents at the Contract Price fixed in the 
Contract.  Contractor at Contractor’s sole cost and expense shall perform all labor and services and 
furnish all the materials, tools, and appliances necessary or proper for performing and completing the 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.  All the labor, services and materials shall be 
performed and furnished strictly pursuant to, and in conformity with the Contract Documents, and the 
directions of the ENGINEER as given from time to time during the progress of the work under the terms 
of the Contract, and also in accordance with the Contract Documents and the submittals to be furnished 
from time to time as provided herein. 

5.2 INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  Should it appear to Contractor that the 
Work to be performed or that the Contract Documents are not sufficiently detailed or explained, or 
should any questions or doubts arise as to the true meaning of any part of the Contract Documents, or 
shall an error, conflict, ambiguity or mistake be apparent or discovered in the Contract Documents, 
including the quantity estimates, the Contractor shall make a written request to the District immediately 
or no later than five (5) days upon discovery of need for correction, clarification or interpretation of the 
point(s) in question.  Upon receipt of such request, the ENGINEER shall provide the Contractor a written 
interpretation correcting, clarifying or interpreting the point(s) in question, which interpretation shall be 
final and become a part of the Contract. 

Should any interpretation, in the opinion of the Contractor, exceed the scope of the Contract 
Documents, written notice shall be given to the District within seven (7) calendar days of the receipt of 
the District’s interpretation and prior to proceeding with the Work in question unless directed otherwise 
by the District.  The District may amend its original interpretation, authorize Extra Work as a Change 
Order and authorize an extension of time, if applicable, in accordance with SECTION 5.3, Change 
Orders herein or the District may direct the Contractor to proceed with the original interpretation. 

107



 

Valve Replacement Project 17 of 30 General Conditions 

If the Contractor proceeds with the work without receiving an interpretation from the District, the District 
shall be relieved of any liability and Contractor shall be responsible for all resulting damage and defects. 

Any Work or material not herein specified or shown on the Contract Documents, but which by fair 
implication in the judgment of the ENGINEER, should be included therein, shall be accomplished or 
furnished by the Contractor as part of the Contract requirements. 

5.3 CHANGE ORDERS 

5.3.1 GENERAL 

5.3.1.1 The ENGINEER on the ENGINEER’S own initiative (District Initiated Change Order) 
or in response to a written request from the Contractor (Contractor Initiated Change Order) or 
by unilateral direction (Unilateral Change Order) may by written Change Order require 
additions to, deletions of or modifications of the requirements of the Work.  For example, 
Change Orders may modify the design, line, grade, form, location, dimensions, plan, 
component, equipment or quantity of the Work. 

5.3.1.2 Change Orders that diminish the quantity or amount of work to be done, shall entitle 
the District to a reasonable credit and shall not constitute the basis for a claim for damages or 
anticipated profits by the Contractor on the diminished work; provided that, if a change renders 
useless any work already done or materials already furnished or used in the Work, the 
ENGINEER, shall make reasonable allowance therefore, which allowance shall be binding 
upon both parties. 

5.3.1.3 A Change Order shall specify the adjustment in Contract time, if any, for the changed 
Work.  If Extra Work cannot be completed by the completion date, the Contractor shall be 
entitled to an adjustment in Contract time according to proof provided by the Contractor to the 
ENGINEER including, but not limited to, a detailed schedule analysis, including the appropriate 
and required schedule fragnets, evidencing the justification of and need for the adjustment. 

5.3.1.4 A Change Order shall specify the adjustment of the Contract Price, if any, for the 
changed Work. 

5.3.1.5 DISTRICT INITIATED CHANGE ORDERS.  The ENGINEER may require additions 
to, deletions of, or modifications to the requirements of the Work that may involve an adjustment 
in the Contract Price or the Contract Time via a Change Order issued by the District.  The 
District shall provide the Contractor with prompt notice of its desire to issue said Change Order 
and shall consult with the Contractor in an attempt to mutually agree upon the estimated cost 
and time impacts, if any, as a result of said change.  If District and Contractor fail to reach an 
agreement, the District shall be entitled to issue a Unilateral Change Order pursuant to Section 
5.3.1.12. 

5.3.1.6 The ENGINEER may authorize minor variations from the requirements of the 
Contract Documents that do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract 
time and are consistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents.  These variations 
may be accomplished by a Field Order and will require the Contractor to promptly perform the 
work involved.  If the Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an increase in the Contract 
Price or an extension of the Contract time the Contractor shall request a Change Order 
pursuant to Section 5.3.1.9. 

5.3.1.7 Contractor shall not proceed with any changed work unless and until the ENGINEER 
issues a Change Order, unless expressly instructed in writing to proceed with the Extra Work 
pending resolution of the Change Order. 

108



 

Valve Replacement Project 18 of 30 General Conditions 

5.3.1.8 During construction and prior to performing any of the Work at the jobsite, the 
Contractor shall verify the dimensions and quantities specified by the Contract Documents, and 
shall immediately notify the ENGINEER of all discrepancies that are discovered.  If the 
ENGINEER determines that instructions to address a discrepancy are necessary, the 
instructions will be given by Field Order or Change Order. 

5.3.1.9 CONTRACTOR INITIATED CHANGE ORDERS.  If the Contractor determines that 
an event, circumstance or condition gives rise to a change in the Contract Price or the Contract 
Time, Contractor shall submit to the ENGINEER a written request for change order within 
fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of the event or fourteen (14) calendar days from the 
date the Contractor first discovered (or should have discovered in the exercise of reasonable 
prudence) that the event, circumstance or condition would give rise to a change in the Contract 
Price or Contract Time.  If Contractor fails to provide said written notice within fourteen (14) 
calendar days, Contractor agrees that it waives its right to collect any and all costs incurred as 
a result of said event, circumstance or condition, and further agrees that it waives the right to 
seek any extension of the Contract Time as a result of the event, circumstance or condition.  
Contractor further agrees that the failure to provide said timely notice (14 calendar days) of an 
alleged change shall preclude Contractor from submitting or pursuing any and all claims or 
protests arising from said event, circumstance or condition. 

5.3.1.10 The Contractor may request a Change Order pursuant to Section 5.3.1.9 because 
of the availability of an improved technology or design that would meet or exceed the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. 

5.3.1.11 Contractor shall not proceed with any changed work unless and until the ENGINEER 
issues a Change Order, unless expressly instructed in writing to proceed with the Extra Work 
pending resolution of the Change Order. 

5.3.1.12 UNILATERAL CHANGE ORDERS.  If at any time the District and the Contractor 
cannot reach agreement as to a Change Order, the District may, at its sole discretion, issue a 
Unilateral Change Order to Contractor directing contractor to perform the ordered Extra Work 
and furnish the labor, materials and equipment required for its completion.  Contractor agrees 
that upon issuance of a Unilateral Change Order that it shall diligently prosecute the required 
Work to completion.  The District shall in its sole discretion determine a fair and reasonable 
adjustment to the Contract Price and Contract Time.  If Contractor disagrees with the time or 
price adjustment set forth in the Unilateral Change Order, it shall pursue a Protest pursuant to 
Section 5.4. 

5.3.1.13 Work performed pursuant to a Change Order is subject to all of the provisions of the 
Contract Documents and the Contractor’s bonds and insurance shall be bound with reference 
thereto as under the original Contract.  If required, the Contractor shall provide the ENGINEER 
with new bonds and certificates of insurance and endorsements reflecting the Change Order.  
The cost to the Contractor or the credit to the District for revised bonds and insurance premiums 
shall be included in the revised Contract Price. 

5.3.1.14 The Contractor shall pursuant to the requirements of Section 5.3.1.9, and before the 
following conditions are disturbed, notify the District of any differing site conditions including 
but not limited to: (1) material that the Contractor believes may be hazardous waste, as defined 
in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, 
Class II or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law; (2) subsurface 
or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated; or (3) unknown physical 
conditions at the site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily 
encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work provided for in the Contract 
Documents. 

109



 

Valve Replacement Project 19 of 30 General Conditions 

The District shall promptly investigate the conditions and if it finds that the conditions do materially so 
differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or 
the time required for, performance of any part of the Work, the District shall issue a Change Order in 
accordance with this Section 5. 

5.3.2 PROCESS FOR ISSUING CHANGE ORDERS 

5.3.2.1 The ENGINEER may issue a Change Order designating the changed Work, 
adjustment to the completion time, if any, and adjustment to the Contractor’s payment or credit, 
if any.  Within three (3) work days of the receipt of the Change Order, the Contractor shall either 
(1) sign the Change Order indicating the Contractor’s acceptance of the terms of the Change 
Order, or (2) return the Change Order without signing it and propose modifications.  If the 
Contractor returns the Change Order without signing it, the ENGINEER may issue a revised 
Change Order, or reissue the original Change Order or issue a Unilateral Change Order 
pursuant to Section 5.3.1.12 and direct the Contractor to perform the ordered Work subject to 
the Contractor’s rights of protest and dispute resolution. 

5.3.2.2 Alternatively, the ENGINEER may submit a Change Order designating the changed 
work and requesting an estimate of the cost or credit and schedule for the work.  Within ten 
(10) business days, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the ENGINEER a written 
estimate of cost and schedule for the work.  The ENGINEER may thereafter issue a Change 
Order as provided in 5.3.1.5 above. 

5.3.2.3 Adjustment in the price paid for a Change Order due the Contractor shall be 
determined by one or more of the following methods in the following order of precedence: 

1. Unit Prices contained in the Contract Documents. 

2. Mutually agreed lump-sum or Unit Prices, based upon current prevailing fair prices for 
equipment, materials, labor, overhead, and profit.  If requested by the ENGINEER, the 
Contractor shall furnish an itemized breakdown of the quantities and prices used in 
computing proposed lump-sum and Unit Prices for the Extra Work. 

3. Mutually agreed prices for labor, materials, and equipment actually used based on the 
following (time and materials): 

(a)  Cost of labor plus fifteen percent (15%) for workers directly engaged in the 
performance of the Work.  Cost of labor shall include actual wages paid including 
employer payments to or on behalf of the workers for health and welfare, pension, 
vacation, and similar purposes plus payments imposed on payroll amounts by 
applicable laws and regulations, plus subsistence and travel (other employer payments 
to employees.) 

(b)  Cost of material plus fifteen percent (15%).  Cost of material shall include sales 
tax, freight, and delivery charges.  The District reserves the right to furnish such 
material as it deems advisable and the Contractor shall not be paid the fifteen percent 
(15%) markup on such materials. 

(c)  Cost of equipment plus fifteen percent (15%) for tools and equipment actually 
engaged in the performance of the Work.  Equipment rates shall be the lesser of the 
actual rental rates or those listed for such equipment in the California Department of 
Transportation publication entitled Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates, 
which is in effect on the date the Work is performed, regardless of ownership and any 
rental or other agreement, if such may exist, for use of such equipment entered into by 
the Contractor.  If it is deemed necessary by the ENGINEER to use equipment not 
listed in that publication, a suitable rental rate for such equipment will be established 
by the ENGINEER.  The Contractor shall furnish any cost data that might assist the 
ENGINEER in the establishment of such rental rate. 

110



 

Valve Replacement Project 20 of 30 General Conditions 

No rental charge shall be made for use of tools or equipment having a replacement 
cost of five hundred dollars ($500) or less.  No payment will be made for equipment on 
standby or idle time.  Payment for equipment will only be made for actual time of use 
as verified by the ENGINEER.  The equipment rental rates shall include the cost of 
fuel, oil, lubrication, supplies, small tools, necessary attachments, repairs and 
maintenance of any kind, depreciation, storage, insurance, and all incidentals.  The 
cost of labor for operators of equipment shall be separately paid for as provided herein.  
Small tools are part of the Contractor’s markup. 

(d)  Subcontractor invoices to the Contractor plus five percent (5%).  Subcontractor 
invoices shall be based upon the above described cost of labor plus fifteen percent 
(15%), cost of material plus fifteen percent (15%), and tool and equipment rental rates 
plus fifteen percent (15%).  The five percent (5%) markup to the Subcontractor’s 
invoice shall be applied only one time for each separate Extra Work transaction, 
regardless of the number of tiers of Subcontractors performing the Extra Work. 

(e)  The Contractor shall submit to the ENGINEER for verification, on a daily basis, 
work sheets showing an itemized breakdown of labor, materials, tools, and equipment 
used in Extra Work.  No labor, materials, or equipment will be determined to be actually 
used unless it has been verified daily by the ENGINEER.  Payment shall be made 
solely for labor, materials or equipment actually used. 

(f)  No separate payment shall be made for any item not set forth specifically above, 
including without limitation, Contractor’s overhead, profit, general administrative 
expense, supervision, bonds and insurance premiums, or damages claimed for delay 
in prosecuting the remainder of the Work; as such items are deemed included in the 
percentage markups described previously.  The total payment made as provided 
above shall constitute full compensation for the changed Work. 

5.3.3 UNCONTROLLABLE CIRCUMSTANCES/EXCUSABLE DELAYS 

5.3.3.1 Upon Contractor’s written request and submission of substantiating documentation 
of a delay caused by an Uncontrollable Circumstance (as defined in this Section 5.3.3 below), 
the ENGINEER shall extend the time fixed in Section 4 of the Construction Agreement for 
completion of the Project by the number of days Contractor has thus been delayed, if District 
finds that the delay is justified.  Contractor shall submit the written request to District for such 
time extension pursuant to Section 5.3.1.9 above.  District’s decision will be conclusive on the 
parties to this Contract.  Failure to file such request within the time allowed shall be deemed a 
waiver of the claim by Contractor. 

Documentation and determination of delays shall be handled in the same manner as Change 
Orders, Protests and Claims as set forth in these General Conditions.  Uncontrollable 
Circumstances means any act, event or condition that (1) is beyond the reasonable control of 
the Contractor that justifies not timely performing an obligation or complying with any condition 
required under the Contract Documents and (2) materially expands the scope of, interferes 
with, or delays the Contractors performance obligations under the Contract Documents, but 
only if such act, event or condition is not the result of the willful or negligent act, error or 
omission, failure to exercise reasonable diligence, or breach of the Contract Documents on the 
part of the Contractor. 

Examples of acts, events or conditions that qualify as Uncontrollable Circumstances are 
naturally occurring events (except inclement weather normal for the area where the Work is 
being performed) such as earthquakes, fires, tornadoes, hurricanes and other acts of God; 
terrorism, sabotage, and other acts of a declared public enemy; and labor disputes, except 
labor disputes involving employees of the Contractor.  Acts, events, and conditions that are not 
considered Uncontrollable Circumstances include but are not limited to Contractor’s inability to 
obtain timely materials or equipment; work related injuries, safety violations; errors, neglect or 

111



 

Valve Replacement Project 21 of 30 General Conditions 

omission by the Contractor or its Subcontractors in performance of the Work, inclement 
weather conditions normal for the Work area; any mechanical failure of equipment; or any 
electrical power outages except as a direct result of an independent uncontrollable 
circumstance. 

5.3.3.2 No requests by Contractor for additional compensation or damages for delays will 
be allowed unless Contractor satisfies District that such delays were unavoidable and not the 
result of any action or inaction of Contractor and that Contractor took available measures to 
mitigate such damages.  Extensions of time and extra compensation as a result of differing site 
conditions will be determined in accordance with Section 5.3.2 of the General Conditions.  The 
District’s decision will be conclusive on all parties to this Contract. 

5.4. PROTESTS 

5.4.1 If the Contractor considers any Work required of it to be outside the requirements of the 
Contract, or if it considers any instruction, meaning, requirement, ruling or decision of the District 
or its representative to be unauthorized pursuant to the Contract, it shall within seven (7) calendar 
days after such demand is made, or instruction given, or receipt of a decision, file a written protest 
with the District stating clearly and in detail its objections and reasons therefore.  The Contractor 
shall not proceed with any protested work unless and until the ENGINEER gives written notice 
directing the Contractor to proceed with the Work, once directed to proceed with the Work, the 
Contractor shall do so without delay.  ENGINEER shall have right to request information necessary 
to determine protest. 

5.4.2 If a written protest is not issued within seven (7) calendar days, said protest shall be time 
barred and the Contractor’s failure to provide such notice or the installation of any such Work 
without authorization shall be construed as relieving the District of any claim either for added costs 
or for extensions of time. 

5.4.3 The District will review the Contractor’s timely written protest and provide a decision within 
thirty (30) days, but if a decision is not issued within thirty (30) days, the protest will be deemed 
denied.  If after reviewing the District’s decision or the passage of thirty (30) days without receiving 
a decision, the Contractor shall have seven (7) days to notify the ENGINEER, in writing, that the 
Contractor disagrees with the decision and that a claim will be submitted pursuant to Section 5.5 
below. 

5.4.4 The Contractor’s claim shall be in writing and include all documentation necessary to 
substantiate the claim as set forth in Section 5.4.4.1 below.  Resolution of the claim shall proceed 
in accordance with Section 5.5.  The failure of the Contractor to either fail to file the notice of claim 
or, thereafter, a claim, in a timely manner is a waiver of the protest and claim. 

5.4.4.1 Written documentation necessary to substantiate the claim shall include at a 
minimum, the following: 

1. Statement of claim and the basis for it. 

2. List of documentation relating to claim, including specifications, plans, reports, 
schedules, Field Orders, requests for clarification, etc. 

3. Chronology of events and correspondence. 

4. Cost analysis, including all backup financial records supporting the costs analysis and 
any extended overhead claim analysis. 

5. Detailed critical path schedule analysis and backup source documents supporting a 
delay claim. 

Information submitted shall be sufficient to justify the claim. 

112



 

Valve Replacement Project 22 of 30 General Conditions 

5.4.5 Claims submitted pursuant to this Section shall include the following certification statement.  
Failure to include and sign the certification statement shall result in the Contractor waiving all rights 
to the subject claim.  The Contractor shall submit under penalty of perjury with each claim its and 
each Subcontractor's written certification that: 

1. The claim is made in good faith. 

2. Supporting data are accurate and complete to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge and 
belief. 

3. The amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment for which the Contractor 
believes the District is liable. 

4. The Contractor understands that if a false claim is submitted, it will be considered fraud 
and the Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution and any other available relief 
pursuant to Governmental Code section 12650, et seq. 

5.5 PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING CLAIMS (PCC SECTION 9204) 

A The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the best interests of the state and its citizens 
to ensure that all construction business performed on a public works project in the state 
that is complete and not in dispute is paid in full and in a timely manner. 

B Notwithstanding any other law, including, but not limited to, Article 7.1 (commencing with 
Section 10240) of Chapter 1 of Part 2, Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 19100) of 
Part 2, and Article 1.5 (commencing with Section 20104) of Chapter 1 of Part 3, this section 
shall apply to any claim by a contractor in connection with a public works project. 

C For purposes of this section: 

1. “Claim” means a separate demand by a contractor sent by registered mail or certified 
mail with return receipt requested, for one or more of the following: 

a) A time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages or penalties 
for delay assessed by a public entity under a contract for a public works project. 

b) Payment by the public entity of money or damages arising from work done by, or 
on behalf of, the contractor pursuant to the contract for a public works project and 
payment for which is not otherwise expressly provided or to which the claimant is 
not otherwise entitled. 

c) Payment of an amount that is disputed by the public entity. 

2. “Contractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 
(commencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code 
who has entered into a direct contract with a public entity for a public works project. 

3. a) “Public entity” means, without limitation, except as provided in subparagraph (B), 
a state agency, department, office, division, bureau, board, or commission, the 
California State University, the University of California, a city, including a charter city, 
county, including a charter county, city and county, including a charter city and county, 
district, special district, public authority, political subdivision, public corporation, or 
nonprofit transit corporation wholly owned by a public agency and formed to carry out 
the purposes of the public agency. 

b) “Public entity” shall not include the following: 
i. The Department of Water Resources as to any project under the jurisdiction 

of that department. 

113



 

Valve Replacement Project 23 of 30 General Conditions 

ii. The Department of Transportation as to any project under the jurisdiction of 
that department. 

iii. The Department of Parks and Recreation as to any project under the 
jurisdiction of that department. 

iv. The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation with respect to any project 
under its jurisdiction pursuant to Chapter 11 (commencing with Section 
7000) of Title 7 of Part 3 of the Penal Code. 

v. The Military Department as to any project under the jurisdiction of that 
department. 

vi. The Department of General Services as to all other projects. 
vii. The High-Speed Rail Authority. 

4. “Public works project” means the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or 
improvement of any public structure, building, road, or other public improvement of any 
kind. 

5. “Subcontractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 
(commencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code 
who either is in direct contract with a contractor or is a lower tier subcontractor. 

D 1. a) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim 
applies shall conduct a reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to 
exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying what 
portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a 
claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time 
period provided in this subdivision. 

b) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. 

c) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant 
a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of 
the claim, and the governing body does not meet within the 45 days or within the 
mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by registered 
mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to 
three days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body 
after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the claimant a written 
statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 

d) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and 
made within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement. If the public 
entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph (3) shall apply. 

2. a) If the claimant disputes the public entity’s written response, or if the public entity 
fails to respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, 
the claimant may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for 
settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by 
registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall 
schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the 
dispute. 

b) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer 
conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in dispute, the public 
entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying the portion of the 
claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due 
on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days 
after the public entity issues its written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, 

114



 

Valve Replacement Project 24 of 30 General Conditions 

as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding 
mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs 
equally. The public entity and claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 
business days after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. 
If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and 
those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard 
to the disputed portion of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs 
charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral 
mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute 
shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section. 

c) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, 
including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which 
an independent third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution through 
negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform 
to the timeframes in this section. 

d) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the 
mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation 
under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been commenced. 

e) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes 
under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if 
mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ dispute. 

3. Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time 
periods described in this subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this 
section shall result in the claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is 
denied by reason of the public entity’s failure to have responded to a claim, or its failure 
to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse 
finding with regard to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the 
claimant. 

4. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 
7 percent per annum. 

5. If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim 
against a public entity because privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may 
present to the public entity a claim on behalf of a subcontractor or lower tier 
subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf 
or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work 
which was performed by the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf 
of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the claim be presented to the 
public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. Within 45 
days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in 
writing as to whether the contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the 
original contractor did not present the claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement 
of the reasons for not having done so. 

E The text of this section or a summary of it shall be set forth in the plans or specifications 
for any public works project that may give rise to a claim under this section. 

F A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, 
however, that (1) upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in 
writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding 
arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe reasonable change order, 
claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the provisions of 

115



 

Valve Replacement Project 25 of 30 General Conditions 

this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair 
the timeframes and procedures set forth in this section. 

G This section applies to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2017. 

H Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants 
available through a competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet 
its contractual obligations. 

I This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2020, and as of that date is repealed, 
unless a later enacted statute, that is enacted before January 1, 2020, deletes or extends 
that date. 

(Added by Stats. 2016, Ch. 810, Sec. 1. (AB 626) Effective January 1, 2017.  Repealed as of January 
1, 2020, by its own provisions.) 

SECTION 6. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK 

6.1 PROGRESS OF WORK 

6.1.1 Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall commence the Work upon the issuance 
of the Notice to Proceed or the date specified within the Notice to Proceed (the "Notice to Proceed 
Date") and shall diligently prosecute the Work to its completion.  A Notice of Completion shall be 
recorded for the Work, but the District’s failure to do so, timely or otherwise, shall not be raised as 
a defense to the untimely assertion of any rights by Contractor, its Subcontractors or Suppliers of 
any tier. 

6.1.2 The continuous prosecution of the Work by the Contractor shall be subject only to the 
delays defined in this Contract.  The start of Work shall include attendance at preconstruction 
conferences, preparation and submittal of submittals, equipment lists, and schedule of values, 
schedules, requests for substitutions and other similar activities.  Submittals shall be prepared in 
accordance with the Contract Documents and shall be made in the time limits indicated.  Except 
as specifically authorized by the District, no Work shall commence on site before the Notice to 
Proceed Date or after the Notice to Proceed Date but before all applicable Contract requirements 
have been satisfied. 

Notwithstanding this Section 6.1.2, under no circumstances shall the Contractor proceed to work 
under any verbal authorization or issuance of Notice to Proceed by District where the Contractor is 
not in receipt of the Contract Documents full executed by Contractor and District authorizing the 
Project, including but not limited to the Construction Agreement. 

6.1.3 The Work shall be brought to completion, as determined by the District, in the manner 
provided in the Contract Documents and in the number of calendar days set forth in the Section 4 
of the Construction Agreement. 

6.1.4 Failure to reach completion as determined by the District within the Contract time and in 
the manner required by the Contract Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages 
as stipulated in Section 6 of the Construction Agreement unless extensions of time are granted in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 

6.1.5 The Contractor shall at all times keep on the premises sufficient material and employ 
sufficient supervision and workers to prosecute the Work at a rate necessary to reach completion 
of the Work as required within the Contract Documents.  Work shall not start, nor shall the Work 
be left in an incomplete state for an indeterminate period of time, while equipment and materials 
are in transit. 

116



 

Valve Replacement Project 26 of 30 General Conditions 

6.1.6 It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to maintain its schedule so as not to delay 
the progress of the Work or the schedules of other contractors and workers who may be employed 
by the District on any Work in the vicinity of the Work to be done pursuant to this Contract, and it 
shall conduct its operations so as not to interfere with the Work of such contractors or workers.  The 
Contractor is required by virtue of this Contract to cooperate in every way possible with other 
contractors or workers in order to complete the Work within the Contract time.  No additional 
compensation will be paid to Contractor for such cooperation, except as otherwise provided.  If the 
Contractor delays the progress of the Work or the progress of other Contractors or workers, it shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor to take some or all of the steps outlined below to improve its 
progress. 

6.1.7 If, in the opinion of the District, the Contractor falls behind with the Work or current update 
of the Contract schedule and is not entitled to an extension of time, the Contractor shall take some 
or all of the steps outlined below to improve its progress at no additional charge to the District, and 
shall submit operation plans to demonstrate the manner in which the desired rate of progress may 
be regained. 

6.1.7.1 Increase construction personnel in such quantities and crafts as will substantially 
eliminate the backlog of Work and allow the Contractor to complete the Work within the 
Contract time. 

6.1.7.2 Increase, when permitted, the number of working hours per shift, shifts per working 
day, working days per week or the amount of construction equipment or any combination of 
the foregoing, sufficient to substantially eliminate the backlog of Work. 

6.1.7.3 Reschedule activities to achieve maximum practical concurrence of accomplishment 
of activities; and/or 

6.1.7.4 Expedite delivery of materials and equipment. 

6.1.8 Should the Contractor at any time during the progress of the Work, refuse, neglect or be 
unable for avoidable reasons to supply sufficient material, supervision or workers to prosecute the 
Work at a rate necessary to complete the Work within the Contract time or in accordance with the 
currently accepted updated construction schedule, the District shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract as provided in Section 4.7 of the General Conditions.  If the Contractor does not comply 
with a notice to correct default from the District within the time specified in the notice, the District 
shall have the right to provide the materials and workers to finish the Work and/or terminate the 
Contract.  The expenses incurred by the District to complete such Work shall be deducted from any 
monies due or which may become due under the Contract and/or the construction fund for the 
Work.  In the event the expenses incurred exceed the amounts due to the Contractor of the 
construction fund for the Work, the Contractor or its Surety shall reimburse the District for any such 
shortage in funds. 

6.2 USE PRIOR TO FINAL COMPLETION 

6.2.1 District shall have the right to use all or a portion of the Work at no additional cost to District, 
even if Substantial Completion of the Work, as more particularly described in Section 6.3 – 
Substantial Completion, has not occurred and even if the Work has not been finally accepted. 

6.2.2 If District elects to take possession of and to use any completed or partially completed 
portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of the Work, the ENGINEER shall document 
in writing to the Contractor the scope of Work it wishes to take possession of and an inspection 
shall be made by the Contractor and ENGINEER of said scope of Work.  Based on such inspection, 
the ENGINEER will attempt to list all incomplete and/or deficient items of Work observed, and 
provide the Contractor with such a list.  However, the absence of an item from the list shall not 

117



 

Valve Replacement Project 27 of 30 General Conditions 

relieve the Contractor of responsibility to perform all of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, and any and all areas so occupied will be subject to Final Inspection after the 
Contractor achieves Substantial Completion.  If the use of these portions of the Work by District 
delays the progress of the Work or causes additional expense to the Contractor, the Contractor 
shall file a written request for extension of time and/or Extra Work as specified in Section 5.3.1.9. 

6.2.3 The warranty period for portions of the Work placed into service prior to Final Acceptance 
of the Work shall be one (1) year commencing on the date of the District’s written notification to the 
Contractor that all incomplete and/or deficient items of Work observed by the ENGINEER as 
described in 6.2.2 above, have been completed and/or corrected by the Contractor.  However, if 
during Final Inspection any incomplete and/or deficient items are observed in any portions of Work 
placed into service prior to Final Completion, and such incomplete and/or deficient items are not 
the result of or caused by District’s occupancy, the guarantee period for any such portions of Work 
shall not be deemed to have commenced at any time prior, and shall commence on the date of 
Final Acceptance once any such incomplete and/or deficient Work is completed and/or corrected 
in connection therewith. 

6.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

6.3.1 Substantial Completion of the Work means the Work has progressed to the point that 
District can beneficially occupy or utilize the Work as a whole for the purpose for which it is intended, 
and the Work complies with applicable codes and regulations, including if required, issuance of 
certificates of occupancy, or certificate of suitability for use from the appropriate governmental 
agencies, as determined by the ENGINEER at ENGINEER’S sole discretion. 

6.3.2 When the Contractor considers that Substantial Completion has been achieved, the 
Contractor shall notify the ENGINEER, formally, in writing [Notice of Substantial Completion of the 
Work] that the Work is substantially complete to the required stage and is ready for inspection.  The 
Contractor shall include with its Notice of Substantial Completion of the Work a list of minor items, 
(including the Contractor’s punchlist) to be completed or corrected that would not affect beneficial 
occupancy or suitability for use. 

6.3.3 After receipt of the Contractor’s Notice of Substantial Completion of Work, the ENGINEER 
and Contractor, and any other representative as the ENGINEER deems appropriate, shall make 
an inspection of the Work to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance with 
the Contract Documents and to review the Contractor’s punchlist. 

6.3.3.1 If, in the ENGINEER’S sole opinion, the Work has not achieved Substantial 
Completion, the parties shall cease the inspection and all costs incurred by District as a result 
of the premature inspection shall be deducted from the payments due the Contractor.  
Contractor shall thereafter perform all remaining Work to reach Substantial Completion, and 
re-submit its Notice of Substantial Completion of Work.  The inspection of the Work will re-
commence as set forth above. 

6.3.3.2 If the Work has achieved Substantial Completion, a punchlist shall be prepared by 
the ENGINEER and shall include those items listed by the Contractor to be completed or 
corrected as well as those items observed during the inspection.  Failure to include any items 
on the punchlist shall not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, nor shall the punchlist amend the Contract 
Documents.  All deficiencies and/or items identified on the punchlist must be corrected within 
thirty (30) days of said initial inspection conducted at the Substantial Completion phase, unless 
otherwise specified in writing by the ENGINEER. 

 

118



 

Valve Replacement Project 28 of 30 General Conditions 

6.4 FINAL INSPECTION, FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

6.4.1 FINAL INSPECTION.  The Contractor shall notify the ENGINEER in writing when all 
punchlist items have been completed, all Work is completed in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and all clean-up has been done.  Clean-up shall be completed when all waste, 
materials, excess materials, tools, and equipment such as scaffolding, temporary structures, and 
unneeded facilities such as fencing and sanitary facilities are removed from the Project.  The 
ENGINEER will then make Final Inspection for the purposes of ascertaining that the Work has been 
fully completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

6.4.2 FINAL COMPLETION.  After the ENGINEER has made the Final Inspection and is satisfied 
that the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, including all punch 
list items, and is satisfied that all submittals have been made and accepted, including but not limited 
to all materials required by the Contract Documents and all As-Builts, record drawings by the 
Contractor, if required by the Contract, and any other required record documents have been 
completed and accepted, all Change Orders have been executed, all final quantities agreed to, and 
all other requirements of the Contract Documents, except for possible future warranty and 
guarantee Work have been accomplished, the ENGINEER shall certify, in writing, the full 
completion of the Work and the date thereon. 

6.4.3 FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  Final Acceptance of the Work shall occur upon the District’s Board 
of Directors’ approval of the Final Completion of the Work and upon recordation of a Notice of 
Completion with the County Recorder. 

SECTION 7. PAYMENT FOR WORK 

7.1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 

7.1.1 Each month Contractor shall be paid a sum (less retention) equal to the value of the Work 
(based on the Schedule of Values) performed up to the last day of the previous calendar month, 
less the aggregate of the previous payments.  The monthly payments shall be made on the basis 
of monthly progress estimates that shall be submitted by the Contractor and approved by the 
ENGINEER.  Quantities used in computing partial payments shall be considered as estimates only 
and shall be subject to revision in subsequent estimates.  Work completed as estimated shall be 
an estimate only and no inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall operate to release the Contractor 
or any Surety from damages arising from such work or from the enforcement of each and every 
provision of this Contract and the District shall have the right subsequently to correct any error 
made in any estimate for payment.  Materials delivered but not incorporated or installed in the Work 
will not be included in progress payments unless allowed by Supplemental Conditions or Project 
Plans and Specifications. 

7.1.2 If a progress payment received from the Contractor is undisputed and properly submitted, 
payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after receipt of progress payment, and if not so paid, 
Public Contract Code section 20104.50 may apply.  If, however, the progress payment is 
determined not to be proper or correct, the District may, at its option, correct the progress payment 
and pay the amended amount or return the progress payment no later than seven (7) days after 
receipt, accompanied by a document setting forth in writing the reasons it is not proper. 

7.1.3 A deduction of five percent (5%) will be made and held as retention from each progress 
payment; however, if Contractor has, in the judgment of the District, satisfactorily completed ninety-
five percent (95%) of the work as determined from the Construction schedule, the General Manager 
may recommend a reduction of the withholding rate to an amount not less than 125 percent of the 
work yet to be completed, as determined by the General Manager, if the reduction has been 
approved, in writing, by the surety on the performance bond and by the surety on the payment 
bond. 

119



 

Valve Replacement Project 29 of 30 General Conditions 

7.1.4 Notwithstanding any other provision in this Contract, as provided in Public Contract Code 
section 22300 and subject to the requirements thereof, Contractor may substitute securities for 
monies withheld by the District to ensure proper performance under this Contract.  The substitution 
of securities or the deposit of the amount retained shall be at the sole expense of and request of 
Contractor. 

7.1.5 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor and/or Supplier in the time periods required 
by law. 

7.2 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 

7.2.1 In Contracts with a duration of sixty (60) days or longer, on or before the seventh (7th) day 
of each calendar month, the Contractor shall submit to the ENGINEER a progress payment for the 
value of work done and materials used to the last day of the previous calendar month.  Progress 
payments shall be made in the format provided by the District. 

7.2.2 Unless modified in the Supplemental Conditions or Project Plans and Specifications, 
payment for materials delivered, but not yet incorporated into the Work shall be paid as follows: 
materials accepted to the Work site or to an acceptable location by District shall be paid at the 
actual cost of materials.  Labor for installation of such materials will be paid upon installation of 
materials. 

7.2.3 Contractor warrants that upon submittal of the progress payment that all work for which 
previous progress payments have been made and payments received from the District shall, to the 
best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of claims, security 
interests or encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers or other persons, 
or entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment related to 
the Work and that all work for which payment is demanded has been performed in accordance with 
the Contract and that the amount claimed is due.  With each progress payment, Contractor shall 
certify that the As-Built drawings have been updated and jointly reviewed with the District for the 
month that payment is requested. 

7.2.4 Contractor agrees to furnish, if and when required by District, receipts, vouchers, releases 
and/or waivers of claims for labor, material, equipment and services performed by Contractor and 
any and all subcontractors performing Work or furnishing materials under this Contract or any 
subcontract with Contractor, all in a form satisfactory to District, and it is agreed that no payment 
shall be made except at District’s option until and unless such receipts, vouchers or releases and/or 
waivers, or any and all of them, have been furnished.  Any progress payment made prior to 
acceptance of the Work by District shall not be construed as evidence of acceptance of any part of 
Contractor’s Work. 

7.3 FINAL ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT.  Within five (5) calendar days following the Board of 
Director’s Final Acceptance of the Work, the District shall file a Notice of Completion with the County 
Recorder’s office.  Thirty (30) days after the filing of the Notice of Completion, and subject to the 
Contractor’s evidence of compliance with Section 7.5 below, the District will pay or release to the 
Contractor all retention funds due him under the provisions of the Contract Documents. 

7.4 STOP NOTICES 

7.4.1 For each properly filed and unreleased stop notice, the District shall withhold from current 
progress payments an amount equal to one-hundred-twenty-five percent (125%) of each stop 
notice amount. 

7.4.2 Upon request by the Contractor, payments may be made jointly to the Contractor and a 
stop notice claimant.  Any such payment shall be deemed to be a payment to the Contractor. 

120



 

Valve Replacement Project 30 of 30 General Conditions 

7.5 RELEASE OF CLAIMS.  Before the District pays or releases to the Contractor his retention for 
the work, the Contractor shall submit unconditional lien releases from all Subcontractors and/or 
Suppliers who have submitted a preliminary notice or stop notice.  The release shall state that the 
Contractor has satisfied all claims and indebtedness of every nature in any way connected with the 
work, including (but not limiting the generality of the foregoing) all payrolls, amounts due to 
subcontractors’, accounts for labor performed and materials furnished, incidental services, liens, and 
judgments.  If any lien or claim remains unsatisfied after all retention has been released or payments 
made to the Contractor, the Contractor shall refund to the District all monies that the latter may be 
compelled to pay in discharging such a lien or claim, including all costs and a reasonable attorney's 
fee. 

7.6 RIGHT TO AUDIT.  District shall have the right to audit, during the Contractor’s normal business 
hours at the office of the Contractor, any of the Contractor’s books and records to the extent they are 
relevant or calculated to lead to relevant evidence relating to any claim submitted by the Contractor or 
the Contractor’s performance under the Contract.  This right shall include, without limitation, the right 
to examine the books, records, documents, Bid records, and other evidence and accounting procedures 
and practices, sufficient to discover and verify all direct and indirect costs, including claimed 
unabsorbed overhead costs of whatever nature claimed to have been incurred or anticipated to be 
incurred and for which the claim has been submitted.  The Contractor further agrees that the right to 
audit encompasses all subcontracts and is binding upon Subcontractors.  Additionally, the Contractor 
shall make available within ten (10) days to the District’s auditing, all requested schedules, plans, 
accounting records and documents and other financial data, and upon request, shall submit true copies 
of requested records to the District. 

7.7 ASSIGNMENT OF ANTI-TRUST CLAIMS.  Contractor agrees to assign District all rights, title, 
and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (U.S.C Sec. 
15) or under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2, commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of 
the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchases of goods, services or materials pursuant 
to the Contract.  This assignment becomes effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the 
Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties.  The Contractor shall have the rights set 
forth in Section 4553 and 4554 of the Government Code. 

7.8 BANKRUPTCY.  The Contractor shall immediately notify the District of its own or of any of its 
subcontractor's filing for bankruptcy protection and provide the District with a copy of the Bankruptcy 
Case Number and title of the Court in which the petition for bankruptcy was filed.  Filing for bankruptcy 
protection shall be a default of this Contract and grounds for termination as provided by Section 4.7, 
Termination of the General Conditions. 

SECTION 8. MISCELLANEOUS 

8.1 GOVERNING LAW.  The Contract Documents have been negotiated between District and the 
Contractor and shall be subject to and interpreted under the laws of the State of California. 

By entering into the Contract, the Contractor consents and submits to the jurisdiction of the Courts of 
the State of California, County of Ventura, over any action at law, suit in equity, and/or other proceeding 
that may arise out of the Contract Documents. 

121



 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS 

122



 

 

PART 4 

STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

District's Standard Plans 
Incorporated by Reference

123



 

 

 

124



 

Board of Directors: 
 
JARED BOUCHARD, President 
MARCIA MARCUS, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting, March 8, 2022  

 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Peter Martinez, General Manager 

Subject:  Social Media Policy  

Item No.  E-3 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. Board to consider and approve District’s Social Media Policy 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No financial impact. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
At the Regular Board Meeting on January 11, 2022, it was recommended that staff consider 
utilizing social media platforms as an additional channel for external communication. Over the 
past decade many public agencies have augmented their outreach efforts with the aid of social 
media platforms like Facebook, LinkedIn, Instragram, NextDoor, and others. Social media 
provides another avenue for District staff to regularly communicate with residents and improve 
civic engagement.  

If approved, over the next three weeks the District will work towards establishing Facebook and 
Instagram accounts to go along with the District’s existing NextDoor account. Once these 
platforms are firmly established and staff has become familiar with overseeing accounts, the staff 
will begin to advertise the District’s social media presence. 

With the onset of the new social media platforms, it is necessary for the District to establish a 
Social Media Policy that governs appropriate behavior for both users and District staff. If 
approved, the attached social media policy will be available on all of the District’s social media 
platforms. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Social Media Policy 

125



March 8, 2022 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

Social Media Policy   

 

1. Purpose  
1.1. This Social Media Policy (“Policy”) establishes guidelines for the establishment and 

use by the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (“District”) of social 
media sites as a means of conveying information to members of the public. The 
intended purpose of District social media sites is to disseminate information from the 
District about the District’s mission, meetings, activities, and current issues to 
members of the public.   

1.2. The District has an overriding interest and expectation in protecting the integrity of the 
information posted on its social media sites and the content that is attributed to the 
District and its officials.   
 

2. Definitions 
2.1. “Social media sites” means content created by individuals, using accessible, 

expandable, and upgradable publishing technologies, through and on the internet. 
Examples of social media include, but are not limited to, Facebook, Twitter, Blogs, 
RSS, YouTube, LinkedIn, Instagram, etc. “District social media sites” means social 
media sites which the District establishes and maintains, and over which it has control 
over all postings, except for advertisements or hyperlinks by the social media site’s 
owners, vendors, or partners. District social media sites shall supplement, and not 
replace, the District’s required notices and standard methods of communication. 
“Posts” or “postings” means information, articles, pictures, videos or any other form of 
communication posted on a District social media site.  
 

3. General Policy  
3.1. The District’s official website at www.cibcsd.com (or any domain owned by the District) 

will remain the District’s primary means of internet communication.  
3.2. The establishment of District social media sites is subject to approval by the General 

Manager or his/her designee. Upon approval, District social media sites shall bear the 
name and/or official logo of the District.  

3.3. Content on District social media sites is subject to oversight by District Staff.  
3.4. District social media sites shall clearly state that such sites are maintained by the 

District and that the sites comply with the District’s Social Media Policy.  
3.5. District social media sites shall link back to the District’s official website for forms, 

documents, online services and other information necessary to conduct business with 
the District whenever possible.  

3.6. The District’s District Staff shall monitor content on District social media sites to ensure 
adherence to both the District’s Social Media Policy and the interest and goals of the 
District.  

3.7. The District reserves the right to terminate any District social media site at any time 
without notice.  

126



March 8, 2022 

3.8. District social media sites shall comply with usage rules and regulations required by 
the site provider, including privacy policies.  

3.9. The District’s Social Media Policy shall be displayed to users or made available by 
hyperlink.  

3.10. All District social media sites shall adhere to applicable federal, state and local laws, 
regulations and policies.  

3.11. District social media sites are subject to the California Public Records Act. Any content 
maintained on a District social media site that is related to District business, including 
a list of subscribers, posted communication, and communication submitted for posting, 
may be considered a public record and subject to public disclosure.  

3.12. Employees representing the District on District social media sites shall conduct 
themselves at all times as a professional representative of the District and in 
accordance with all District policies. 

3.13. All District social media sites shall utilize authorized District contact information for 
account set-up, monitoring and access. The use of personal email accounts or phone 
numbers by any District employee is not allowed for the purpose of setting-up, 
monitoring, or accessing a District social media site.  

3.14. The District reserves the right to change, modify, or amend all or part of this policy at 
any time.  
 

4. Content Guidelines 
4.1. The content of District social media sites should only pertain to District-sponsored or 

District-endorsed programs, services, and events. Content includes, but is not limited 
to, information, photographs, videos, and hyperlinks.  

4.2. Content posted to the District’s social media sites must contain hyperlinks directing 
users back to the District's official website for in-depth information, forms, documents 
or online services necessary to conduct business with the District, whenever possible.  

4.3. The District shall have full permission or rights to any content posted by the District, 
including photographs and videos.  

4.4. Any employee authorized to post items on any of the District’s social media sites shall 
review, be familiar with, and comply with the social media site’s use policies and terms 
and conditions.  

4.5. Any employee authorized to post items on any of the District’s social media sites shall 
not express his or her own personal views or concerns through such postings. Instead, 
postings on any of the District’s social media sites by an authorized District employee 
shall only reflect the views of the District.  

4.6. Postings must contain information that is freely available to the public and not be 
confidential as defined by any District policy or state or federal law.  

4.7. Postings may NOT contain any personal information, except for the names of 
employees whose job duties include being available for contact by the public.  

4.8. Postings to District social media sites shall NOT contain any of the following:  
4.8.1. Comments that are not topically related to the particular posting being commented 

upon.  

127



March 8, 2022 

4.8.2. Comments in support of, or opposition to, political campaigns, candidates or ballot 
measures;  

4.8.3. Profane language or content;  
4.8.4. Content that promotes, fosters, or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, 

creed, color, age, religion, gender, marital status, or status with regard to public 
assistance, national origin, physical or mental disability or sexual orientation, as well 
as any other category protected by federal, state, or local laws;  

4.8.5. Sexual content or links to sexual content;  
4.8.6. Solicitations of commerce;  
4.8.7. Conduct or encouragement of illegal activity;  
4.8.8. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or public 

systems; or  
4.8.9. Content that violates a legal ownership interest of any other party.  
4.9. These guidelines shall be displayed to users or made available by hyperlink on all 

District social media sites. Any content removed based on these guidelines must be 
retained, including the time, date and identity of the poster, when available.  

4.10. The District reserves the right to implement or remove any functionality of its social 
media sites, when deemed appropriate by the General Manager or his/her designee. 
This includes, but is not limited to, information, articles, pictures, videos or any other 
form of communication that is posted on a District social media site.  

4.11. Except as expressly provided in this Policy, accessing any social media site shall 
comply with all applicable District policies pertaining to communications and the use 
of the internet by employees, including email content.  

4.12. All of the content on District social media sites is subject to oversight by District Staff.  

128



 

Board of Directors: 
 
JARED BOUCHARD, President 
MARCIA MARCUS, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting, March 8, 2022   
  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    Peter Martinez, General Manager  
Subject:    Conditional Use Permit Update from County Planning Commission 

Hearing  
Item No.    E-4 
  
  
RECOMMENDATION:  
  
Board discretion. 
  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
  
 

Receive verbal update from General Manager on the Conditional Use Permit Hearing with the 
County of Ventura Planning Commission. 

129


	February Fianancials 2022
	02-08-22 Regular Board Meeting Minutes Draft (1) (1)[8593]
	Cross Base Pipleline Extension Powerpoint.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Existing Facilities & Aging Infrastructure
	City of Port Hueneme �Cross-Base �Pipeline Extension
	Proposed Alignment Overview
	Existing Cross Base Pipeline
	Existing Cross Base Pipeline (Alternative Slide)
	Proposed Cross Base Pipeline Extension	
	Proposed Alignment
	Alignment Alternatives�Ventura Road vs. Victoria Ave
	Alignment Alternatives�Ventura Road vs. Victoria Ave
	Dirt Shoulder Along Victoria	
	Ventura Road vs. Victoria Ave Intersections
	PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE�FOR CITY OF PORT HUENEME�CROSSBASE PIPELINE EXTENSION


	02-28-22 Special Board Meeting Minutes Draft (1) (1)[8593]
	Resolution No. 22-05 - Staff Report_PM
	RESOLUTION NO. 22-05
	Valve Replacement Project - Solicit Bid Request Staff Report_PM2
	CIBCSD Invitation For Bids - Draft
	INVITATION FOR BIDS
	FOR
	Valve replacement Project
	Contract No. CI 105
	March 2022
	Channel Islands Beach Community Services District

	FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
	VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT
	Contract No. CI 105
	Attendance at the pre-bid conference/site visit is mandatory.  No other site visit will be provided.  Bidders are responsible to understand the Project (Refer to Section 4 of the Instructions to Bidders).
	Bidders must complete and upload to Public Purchase Bidding System all Bid Submittal Forms and Business Information Forms provided in this IFB.  Bidders currently on the District’s Pre-qualified Contractors List do not need to complete the Business In...
	The pre-bid conference will be held at the time and place stated below:
	Date & Time:
	Location:
	Tentative Itinerary:


	VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT
	Contract No. CI 105
	VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT
	Contract No. CI 105
	CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE DECLARATION
	AND CERTIFICATION OF ABILITY TO
	PROVIDE COVERAGES SPECIFIED
	BIDDER'S BOND


	PROPOSER’S BUSINESS INFORMATION (PreQual)
	Table of Contents
	MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR THIS SOLICITATION/CATEGORY:
	A Business Information
	B Business Requirements
	C Financial Information
	E Safety
	CONFIDENTIAL – INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN NOT SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE
	5. Performance History / Relevant Projects
	The Contractor agrees to perform all work under this Contract in accordance with the Contract Documents.
	FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND

	Contract No.: CI 105; and
	PAYMENT BOND

	Contract No.: CI 105; and


	Social Media Policy - Staff Report
	BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

	Social Media Policy
	CUP Update - Staff Report
	03-08-2022 Draft Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	NOTICE & AGENDA




